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Board’s Report

To

The Members,

The Directors are pleased to present the Seventeenth Annual Report on the business and
operations of your Company and the Statements of Account for the year ended 31 March, 2020.

1. Financial Highlights
Figures in X Lakh
Particulars FY 2020 FY 2019
a) Revenue from operations 24,794.49 26,216.19
b) Operating Expenditure 18,875.25 19,373.70
c) Operating Profit 5,919.24 6,842.49
d) Add: Other Income 393.65 231.18
e) Less: Finance Cost 839.32 887.55
f) Profit before depreciation and tax 5,473.57 6,186.12
g) Less: Depreciation/ 453.64 458.09
Amortisation/Impairment
h) Profit Before Tax 5,019.93 5,728.03
i) Tax Expenses 948.69 2,038.27
j) Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 4,071.24 3,689.76
2. Dividend
The directors did not recommend any dividend for FY 2019-20.
3. Transfer of unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

There is no unclaimed dividend to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection

Fund.

4. State of Company’s Affairs

Financial Performance

During the year, your Company reported a Profit after Tax (PAT) of ¥ 4071.24 lakhs as
against ¥ 3689.76 lakhs for the previous year. The Operating Revenue was at ¥ 24794.49
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lakhs as against ¥ 26216.19 lakhs. The Earnings per share (EPS) has increased to ¥ 25.45 as
against ¥ 23.06 in the previous year.

India has an installed generation capacity of 368.8 Giga Watt (GW) as on 31st December,
2018. Generation capacity in the country has been steadily increasing, driven by fresh
investments by private players. During 2019, 47% of the new capacity addition was in form
of Solar Power Plants. However, the growth in demand is not in line with the capacity
addition as a result the demand growth was less than that expected in 19th EPS. As per
Central Electricity Authority’s (CEA) Report, India’s generating capacity comprises of 198
GW of coal based capacity, 25 GW of gas based capacity, 46 GW of hydro capacity, 87 GW
of renewable capacity and about 7 GW of nuclear capacity. The total energy requirement
for FY19 was ~1274 BUs and for FY20, it is estimated to be ~1308 BUs.

In order to meet the increasing demand of power and as per Draft National Electricity Plan,
the capacity addition of 176.3 GW is targeted in 13th plan (2017 — 22). Out of 176.3 GW of
capacity addition target, 48.26 GW will be added from Thermal, 6.82 GW will be added
from Hydro, 3.30 GW from Nuclear, 27.72 GW from Wind and 87.71 GW will be added
from solar generation. The National Electricity Plan estimates that approx. 22 GW of
thermal capacity will retire by 2022 on account of strict environmental norms, it also
estimates that the electricity demand shall grow at 6% till 2022.

The transmission sector plays an important role in the present power scenario which is
characterized by geographical and seasonal diversity factors impacting demand and
supply situation by facilitating transfer of power where required. Indian Power
Transmission System is one of the largest integrated electricity transmission networks in
the world. As per data available on Ministry of Power (MoP) website, Inter-State
Transmission System (ISTS) in India is continuously expanding with current Inter — Regional
Transmission capacity in excess of 90 GW. The National Transmission Grid System is
divided into five regional grids i.e. North, East, West, South and the North-East.
Traditionally there was not enough corridor for power flow from New Grid to Southern
Region. However, due to commissioning of new power projects, the availability of power in
Southern region has increased significantly. This has resulted in reduced variance in the
power market rates in Southern Region as compared to rest of the country.

Power supply position in the country has improved during FY19. As per CEA, the gap
between requirement and availability of energy in maintained at 0.5% during FY20. The
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gap between peak demand and supply improved to 0.7% during FY20 as compared to
0.8% recorded during FY19.

In line with the revised Guidelines issued by Ministry of Power (MoP), total ~35 tenders
were floated by the Distribution Companies (Discoms) for short term power purchase
through competitive bidding on "DEEP" Portal followed by Reverse auction, totalling more
than 62,000 Mega Watt (MW) of power.

In addition, 1 nos. of DISCOM had floated tenders for purchase of 50 MW of hydro power
under Medium term Power Procurement guidelines through "DEEP" portal followed by
Reverse Auction. While the bids have been opened the PPA has not been signed with the
generators as the matter is pending for regulatory approval. Two rounds of Medium Term
Tender for procurement of 2500 MW for a period of 3 years under Aggregation Model
were conducted in FY-20. The first round conducted by NHPC Ltd. was cancelled due to
high tariff discovered in the bid. The second round was conducted by PTC and a tariff of Rs
3.26/kWh was discovered in tender. The PPAs have not been signed yet.

The short term power prices of Day Ahead market have decreased by 22% in FY20 as
compared to FY19. The major reason for decrease in the short term prices are lesser
demand, increased hydro power generation, extended monsoon, increased availability of
coal for power generation and other events such as economic slowdown, impact on
industrial consumption & manufacturing, primarily due to COVID -19.

As per CERC Marketing Monitoring report, the Electricity traded in the short term power
market during FY20 till Jan'20 was 108 Billion Units (BUs), it is estimated that ~138 BUs will
be traded under short term during FY20. This will be ~11.06% of total generation. The
volume traded through Bilateral stood at 6%, 4% through power exchanges and 2%
through Deviation Settlement Mechanism (DSM). The volume traded in short term power
market, has decreased by 5% in FY20 as compared to FY19.

The sector is currently facing several challenges such as

a. Lower trading Margins

The competition has grown fierce due to an increase in the number of Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission (CERC) licensed traders and with the pressure of increasing market
share. Due to this, trading margins are under pressure. New trading licensees are
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aggressively trying to enter into the short term market with lower trading margin. The
CERC has further made the regulations more stringent and have capped the chargeable
trading margin to 2 paisa/unit, in case LC is not provided by the trader.

b. Poor Financial health of DISCOMs

Although several states have raised tariffs in the last few years, the financial condition of
several distribution entities still remains a matter of concern. Improvement in financial
health of DISCOMs would be crucial to power trading market development. With the
implementation of Ujwal DISCOM Assurance Yojna (UDAY) Scheme, some of the DISCOMs'
financial health have marginally improved. The MoP is in plans to float another ambitious
scheme for Discoms revival called ADITYA, which envisages for milestone based disbursal
of ¥ 2.86 trillion and aims to reduce the AT&C losses to below 12%. However, at present,
procurement by DISCOMs on the Case I route is not progressing as envisaged, due to poor
financial condition of DISCOMs.

c. Lower PLF for thermal power plants

Due to the advent of high installed RE capacity, the requirements from conventional power
generators is falling. This implies that there is less off take by DISCOMs. However, the less
off take does not impact the Fixed Cost payable by the DISCOMs. Therefore, the already
debt-ridden DISCOMs are having to pay higher Fixed Costs, even for lesser power
procured from Generators (Low PLF Generators) and hence, are now facing an even higher
financial instability.

d. Open access slow growth

The unwillingness of DISCOMs to allow open access to its consumers, in spite of binding
provisions in the Electricity Act, 2003, is acting as a major barrier to further growth and
competition in the Power Trading sector. Growth in Open Access, is constrained because
of risks due to transmission corridor availability, regulatory risks, restrictive open access
regime being followed in various States and excessive levels of cross subsidy charge.
Further, due to inherent price fluctuations in short term market, open access power
purchase becomes unviable in some of the states intermittently.

During FY20, a promising focus on policy and regulatory reforms, and greater expansion of
power markets has been observed. CERC & MoP came up with several pro-market policy
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interventions which include notification of revised MOP guidelines on Cross-Border Trade
in Electricity (CBTE), MoP's Notification for continuation of "Security Constrained Economic
Dispatch”, on account of its phenomenal results for decreasing the overall gen cost of the
country, resolution of jurisdictional issues between SEBI and CERC for introduction of
derivatives market.

The CERC is to roll out Real-time Market (RTM) with half hourly auctions on continuous
basis from June'20. The adequate transmission capacity, conducive policies for growth in
demand for power, proactive and efficient operations by PSOCO (load dispatcher) & other
policy and regulatory initiatives by the regulator and ministry are expected to pave the way
for increasing volume traded in power market.

Operations

As the Company has created a renewable energy generation portfolio the operations
section is divided into Trading Operation, Generation Operations and Value Added
Services.

a. Trading Operation:
Your Company is the first company to be granted a license by the CERC in June, 2004.

Your Company has traded 10155 MUs in FY20 as compared to 10422 MUs in the
previous year. Your Company was ranked the third largest trader with a market share
of 8.84% in FY20 amongst the top 11 traders.

Your Company has presence in Noida, Mumbai and Chennai and along with resident
representatives in Hyderabad & Kolkata. The trading operations are carried out from
the Control Room at its Noida office and functions on 24x7 on 365 days basis.

In line with the approach of focusing on retail portfolio, your Company has sold about
3396 MUs at Power Exchange, 2953 MUs under Short term Bilateral Trade and 3807
under Long Term Bilateral Trade. In cross border trade, your company sold 512.69
MUs.

b. Generation Operation:

Your Company has set up renewable energy based generation projects in Tamil Nadu,
Gujarat and Jharkhand. The update on generation operations is as follows:
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A. 1.25 MW Sastra Solar Rooftop Project, Tamil Nadu

Your Company has set up a 1.25 MW Solar Rooftop Project in Shanmugha Arts,
Science, Technology & Research Academy (SASTRA) University, Tamil Nadu. The
project was commissioned on 15th March, 2015, and a Power Purchase Agreement
(PPA) is entered into with SASTRA University for a period of 15 years.

During the year, the project generated 1.71 MUs (1.83 MUs in FY19) at a Plant Load
Factor (PLF) of about 16%.

B. 4 MW Wind Project Rojmal District Gujarat

4 MW (2 x 2 MW) Wind Power Plant at Rojmal, District Botad, Gujarat was
commissioned on 17th April, 2015. The power to be generated from the Project is tied
up with Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam limited (GUVNL) at a preferential tariff of ¥ 4.15/kWh
for a period of 25 years.

During the year, the project generated 5.70 MUs (6.04 MUs in FY19) at a PLF of about
16%.

C. 3 MW Noamundi Solar Project, West Singhbhum District, Jharkhand

Your company has set up a 3 MW Solar Power Project at Noamundi, West Singhbhum
District, Jnarkhand. A PPA is entered into with Tata Steel for a period of 15 years. The
project was commissioned on 23rd May 2017.

During the year, the project generated 4.23 MUs (4.44 MUs in FY19) at a PLF of about
16%.

c. Value Added Services
i. Open Access Services

Apart from other things postulated in the Electricity Act 2003, Open Access stands out
as probably the most important provision that has brought about a paradigm shift in
the power sector and has not only enabled but empowered consumers to access
unconstrained supply of power at an affordable price with substantial savings vis a vis
distribution company's tariff. Over the years, a large number of consumers, mainly
industrial and commercial have taken benefit from it and either reduced or optimized
their average cost of power purchase. Open Access flourishes in some states to the
extent that a majority of consumers in those states purchase power through the OA
route intermittently, if not regularly. Having said that, there also exists a reality that a
number of states still restrict or discourage consumers from going into Open Access
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either by increasing CSS/Additional Surcharge, or put such conditions which are
detrimental to Open Access power purchase route.

The Company estimates the total potential of Open Access Market to be around 3126
MW out of which it is currently facilitating around 268 MW for its clients in different
States. By virtue of this volume, the Company had an earning of ~% 2.91 Crores, during
FY20, whereby the estimated market potential is around % 40 Crore. Considering the
huge potential in this segment, the Company envisages to target customers who are
eligible to procure power through open access and facilitate for power procurement by
any of the routes i.e.,, through Exchange or on Bilateral mode (3rd party) or on Group
Captive Power Plant mode. The Company strategizes to target markets which will be
viable, profitable and has the potential to add long-term value to the Company, with
an objective to increase the market share from 7% to 11%. The Company has presence
in different states to convert the OA potential, and is also actively collaborating with its
group company for various activities aimed to expand the market reach betting on
their vast geographical presence. The joint team plans to evolve as a one stop shop for
comprehensive basket of value added solutions for open access customers

ii. Qualified Coordinating Agency (QCA)

During the year, new states coming up with regulations on RE F&S had eliminated the
very basic concept of aggregation. Being in-firm power there are variations in schedule
versus actual and aggregation of RE power across different terrain in a state, reduces
error significantly thereby improves grid stability. Without provision of aggregation,
the considerable amount in terms of percent of revenue earned by generator goes to
state pool account on reasons of DSM penalty. Under such situation, QCA became a
performance based services which required it's own in-house forecast platform.

With initial success in generating solar and wind power forecast using physical /
statistical methods for 27 stations (2617 MW), the Company is now looking for
automation of F&S process to cater larger market share by engaging a 3rd party
software developer as partner to provide end to end AI/ML based Forecasting services
as well as QCA services under Success sharing model based on Forecasting accuracy
commitment. Your Company is also planning to enhance its field strength bandwidth
to cater to more business prospects.

iii. Consultancy Services for REC & Escert Trading
In the area of Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) trading and Energy Saving

Certificates (ESCerts) trading, your Company has emerged as one of the largest trader
in the REC market and traded 10,58,280 RECs during the year
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iv. Advisory services to Group captive Power Plant opportunities

Your Company, from its conventional trading business, has also expanded into Group
Captive Advisory Services as a Value Added Service Business Segment by engaging
with Generators and Open Access Consumers in potential states of Maharashtra,
Gujarat, Tamil Nadu, Telangana, Andhra Pradesh for both conventional and renewable
power.

In 2018, the Company had successfully facilitated TPREL Vagarai wind farm project in
Tamil Nadu with Open Access Consumers including Tata Realty Infotech Ltd, Chennai
under the Group Captive model.

In 2019, the Company had entered into service contract with TPREL for facilitating
GCPP advisory support to Solar Plants on a pan-India basis for Open Access
Consumers. As a part of this service agreement, the Company is facilitating 120 MW
solar GCPP project with Open Access Consumers in Maharashtra, including Netmagic
IT Services Pvt Limited. On the conventional energy front, the Company is presently
engaging with Thermal Generators and Open Access Consumers in Telangana, Andhra
Pradesh and Tamil Nadu for expanding the Group Captive Business Segment, in
addition to renewable GCPP.

Upgrading IT Infrastructure

Application Development for Qualified Co-ordinating Agency (QCA) business has been
initiated to improve the efficiency and response time to the customers.

Operations Control Room has been shifted from Noida to bigger location with upgraded
infrastructure at PSCC in Mumbai. While the disaster recovery site has been moved from
Mumbai to Noida office.

Tata Business Excellence Model (TBEM)

The Tata Business Excellence Model (TBEM) matrix has been conceived to deliver strategic
direction and drive business improvements at the Tata Group. Aimed at enabling Tata
Group companies capture the best global business processes and practices, the business
excellence assessment model invests Tata Group companies with the inherent dynamism
to evolve and keep pace with ever-changing business performance parameters. The main
objectives of the Tata business excellence model assessment methodology is to enhance
value for all stakeholders and contribute to marketplace success, maximise enterprise-wide
effectiveness and capabilities, and deliver organisational and personal learning. The best
part of this exercise is its agility to improve. On the same lines now our processes have
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been aligned to the company T&D business vertical. While realignment the Company has
reduced its no of business verticals from 4 to 3. We have also reviewed our no of EPM’s
and have succeeded in removed the repetition of processes thereby bringing the no of
total EPM'’s from 23 to just 11.

Customer Satisfaction Survey

Your Company conducts the Consumer Satisfaction Survey (C-Sat Survey) every year and
adopted CAWI (Computer Aided Web Interview) methodology for obtaining customer
response utilizing free service from Qualtrics.com for survey. The survey measured
responses across four major dimensions which are Overall Experience, Recommendation,
Continuity of business, & Competitive Advantage. The customers have rated high for
trustworthiness, timely response, staff accessibility and complaint resolution. The C-Sat
Survey Score for FY20 was at 89% as compared to 91% in FY19.

5. Change(s) in the nature of business, if any

There is no change in the nature of the business of the company.

6. Reserve

The net movement in the various reserves of the Company for FY20 and the previous year
are as follows:

% crore
Particulars FY20 FY19
Revaluation Reserve Nil Nil
Securities Premium Account 20.90 20.90
General Reserve 13.55 13.55
Retained Earnings 181.98 141.43
Deemed capital contribution 0.08 0.08

7. Changes in Share Capital

There is no change in share capital of the Company during the year under review.

10
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8. Subsidiaries/Joint ventures/Associates
The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint ventures and associate companies.

9.1 Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

9.2 Additions
(@) During the year following directors have been appointed:
e Mr. Sanjay Kumar Banga (DIN: 07785948) appointed with effect from 19" July
2019.

e Ms. Kiran Gupta (DIN: 08196580) was regularized as Director in the Annual
General Meeting held on 26™ August, 2019.

e Ms. Sanjay Kumar Banga (DIN: 07785948) was regularized as Director in the
Annual General Meeting held on 26™ August, 2019.

(b) During the year following Key Managerial Personnel were appointed:
e Mr. Bhaskar Sarkar as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1% December
2019.

e Mr. Lalit Narang as Chief Financial Officer with effect from 1°* August 2019.

e Ms. Ritu Gupta as Chief Financial Officer with effect from 25™ January 2020.
9.3 Retirements/resignations

(@) During the year following directors have resigned:

e Mr. Ashok Sethi (DIN: 01741911) retired with effect from 01st May, 2019 from
the Board of Directors, on account of superannuation. The Board thanked him
for his services and contributions.

e Mr. Sanjeev Mehra (DIN: 02626778), retired with effect from 01st December,
2019 from the Board of Directors, on account of superannuation. The Board
thanked him for his services and contributions.

() During the year following Key Managerial Personnel resigned:

e Mr. Suranjit Mishra as Chief Financial Officer with effect from 31 July, 2019.
e Mr. Lalit Narang as Chief Financial Officer with effect from 24™ January, 2020.

11
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e Number of Board Meetings and dates

Five Board Meetings were held during the year and the gap between two Board Meetings
did not exceed four months. The dates on which said meetings were held are as follows:

i) 16™ April 2019

i) 19" July 2019

ii) 22" October 2019
iv) 14™ November 2019
V) 20" January 2020

The names and categories of the Directors of the Board and their attendance at the Board
Meeting is as under.

1 Mr. Ashok Sethi® Chairman, Non-Independent, 1
Non-Executive Director
2 Mr. Praveer Sinha Non-Independent, Non-Executive 5
Director
3 Mr.  Sanjay  Kumar Non-Independent, Non-Executive 4
Banga” Director
4  Mr. Sanjeev Mehra® Executive 4
5 Mr. Ajay Kapoor Non-Independent, Non-Executive 4
Director
6 Ms. Kiran Gupta Women- Non Executive Director 5
Note:

(1) Superannuated with effect from 01.05.79

(2) Appointed with effect from 79.07.2079 and regularized in the Annual general meeting
held on 26.08.20179.

(3) Superannuated with effect from 01.12.19

e General Body Meeting

Annual General Meeting (AGM) for FY19 was held on 26 August, 2019.

12
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Committees of the Board

The Company has following Committees of the Board; the number of meetings held by the
committees is also mentioned.

The Composition of Audit Committee as on FY ended 2020 is given below:

Table: Composition of Audit Committee and their designation

1 Ajay Kapoor Chairman
2 Sanjay Banga Member
3 Kiran Gupta Member

There was One (1) Audit Committee meeting held during the FY 20 on 15" January, 2020.

The Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and changes held during
the FY 2020 is given below:

Table: Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and
their designation(s)

1 Ashok Sethi®” Chairman
2 Ajay Kapoor Chairman
3 Sanjeev Mehra® Member
4 Kiran Gupta Member
5 Sanjay Banga Member

(1) Ceased to be director with effect from 07.05.20179.
(2) Ceased to be director with effect from 07.712.20179.

There were two (2) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee meetings held during
the FY 20 on 16™ April, 2019 and 15" October, 2019.

13
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11.1

Committee of Directors (for borrowing)

The Composition of Committee as on FY ended 2020 is given below:

Table: Composition of Committee of Directors and their designation

1 Ajay Kapoor Chairman
2 Sanjay Banga Member
3 Kiran Gupta Member

There was One (1) meeting held during the FY 20 on 22™ October, 2020.

We confirm the above is a complete list of all Shareholder / Member meetings, Board and
Committee meetings held during FY20.

The following disclosures shall be made on the remuneration of directors. All elements of
remuneration package of individual directors summarized under major groups, such as

salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension etc.

Added as Annexure V

Annual Evaluation of Board Performance and Performance of its Committees and
Individual Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the Annual Board Evaluation is not
applicable to the Company.

Regulatory

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

e CERC (Procedure, Terms and Conditions for grant of trading license and other related

matters) Requlations, 2019

CERC has issued new Regulations, 2020 on Procedure, Terms and Conditions for grant
of trading license and other related matters, repealing the earlier CERC (Procedure, Terms
and Conditions for grant of trading license) Regulations, 2009. CERC (Fixation of Trading

14
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Margin) Regulations 2010 have also been repealed and terms and conditions for charging
trading margin have been merged into these new Regulations, 2020.

e Banking of electricity has been allowed through a Trading Licensee

e Financial Qualification — Capital Adequacy and Liquidity Requirements — For Cat-I

Trader, minimum net worth requirement is 50 Crores and trading volume to be minimum
7,000 MU per annum. if the annual volume of electricity proposed to be traded exceeds
10,000 MUs, the Trading Licensee shall have a minimum net worth of Rs. 75 Crores. A new
Category V has been introduced with minimum net worth of Rs 2 Crores and trading
volume up to 500 MU.

e Trading Margin:

For Short term contract including through Exchanges shall charge a trading margin of
not less than 0.0 paise/kWh and not exceeding 7.0 paise/kWh. In case LC/Escrow
arrangement not provided to seller, trading margin shall be capped at 2.0 paise/kWh

v For long term contract, trading margin shall be decided mutually between the Trading
licensee and the Seller, provided in case case LC/Escrow arrangement not provided to
seller, trading margin shall be capped at 2.0 paise/kWh

v For banking transaction Trading Licensee shall charge a cumulative trading margin of
not less than zero (0.0) paise/kWh and not exceeding seven (7.0) paise/kWh.

v For back to back contracts, where LC/Escrow not provided by Traders, trading margin
shall not exceed 2.0 paise/kWh.

v For Cross Border Trade of Electricity, the trading margin shall be decided mutually
between the Trading Licensee and the seller

e Payment Security: For short term contract, Trader shall arrange LC/Escrow in favour of

Seller, for amount equivalent to 1.05 times of contract value. For long term, the
payment security shall be 1.1 times the average monthly bill.

e First Amendments to Trading License Regulations:

v" A new proviso shall be added to sub-clause (e) of clause (1) of Regulation 8 of the
Principal Regulations, as under:- “Provided that the trading margin shall not be less
than zero (0.0) paise/kWh from either of the parties to the banking transaction.”

v' A new proviso shall be added after sub-clause (b) of clause (10) of Regulation 9, as
under:- “Provided that where the duration of the short term contract is more than one

15
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month, the letter of credit in favour of the seller shall be equivalent to one point zero
five (1.05) times of the monthly contract value with validity period equal to validity of
the contract”

Draft CERC (Sharing of ISTS Charges and Losses) Regulations

No transmission loss for ISTS shall be applicable while preparing schedule for injection
node including that for Collective Transactions over the Power Exchanges. As proposed in
the Regulations, transmission charges would be determined post facto on the basis of
actual generation and demand i.e. two months after the power flows

At present, schedules for collective transaction are prepared at Regional Periphery. The
buy DICs need to add the withdrawal POC losses in buy quantum at state periphery and
similarly sell DICs need to subtract the injection POC losses from the sell quantum at
Generator Ex-bus.

In the proposed Regulations, as there shall not be any Injection transmission loss, it is not
clear at what point the schedule and price discovery for collective transaction would be
considered. In our view, all buy bids should be aggregated at Buyer’s state periphery and
accordingly, sell bids at Ex-bus of Generator/Seller should be brought at buyer’s state
periphery by subtracting the weekly All India Average Transmission losses as per clause
10(1), from aggregated sale bids i.e. quantum at Ex-bus of Generator/Seller.

Transmission charges should be known in advance and this would facilitate the
participation of OA Consumers. The uncertainty regarding ISTS charges and STU charges
would hamper the Open Access consumers from participating in the market.

Transmission Deviation Rate shall be applicable for STOA transaction calculated as follows:
For STOA transaction, CERC proposed to levy transmission charges as 1.2 times of state
charges

Transmission deviation should not be levied on account of STOA schedule as in the
prevailing Regulations there is no deviation rate for STOA.

11.3 Other key Regulatory developments in the year FY 2019-20 are as follows

1.

Proposed Green Power Contract at IEX
IEX has filed petition before CERC seeking approval for introduction of Green Term Ahead

Market at Power Exchange. IEX had proposed Green — Term Ahead contracts in the

16
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categories like Green — INTRA DAY, Green — DAY AHEAD CONTINGENCY, Green — DAILY
and Green — WEEKLY.

Draft Detailed Procedure for STOA in Inter-State Transmission through National Open
Access Registry (NOAR)

Your Company has submitted its comments against draft procedure on Real Time Market
issued by POSOCO.

Risk Management Framework and Internal Financial Controls

Risk Management System

Your company is ISO 31000 certified company. It has instituted a risk management system
to support the delivery of the Company’s strategy by managing the risks of failing to
achieve business objectives.

By focusing on the early identification of key risks, it enables your company to conduct a
detailed scrutiny of the existing level of mitigation and further management actions
required to either reduce or remove the risk.

On periodic basis, each functional lead carries out a detailed risk review exercise and
updates the risk register. The register ensures consistency of approach in management and
reporting of risks. Risk Management framework aims at achieving the following:

« Identify and classify each risk

«  Assess the inherent risk impact and likelihood,

»  Identify mitigation measures;

» Identify risk owner who has responsibility for the timely implementation of the
agreed mitigation plan; and

»  Report on implementation of risk mitigation action plan.

Subsidiary Risk Management Committee (SRMC) Meetings revisit the risk management
framework annually.

Due to rigorous Risk Management system of rating the Discoms, your Company’s debtors
outstanding is one of the lowest in the power trading industry.

Business Continuity and Disaster Management Program (BCDMP)

Your Company is certified ISO 22301:2012 Company for BCDMP. Mockdrills and Table Top
Exercise were carried out during the year to increase awareness and prepare the team for
any eventuality. We have identified the processes under L1, L2, L3 and L4 processes. In-line
with the requirement of the certification, it has developed Damage Assessment Team,

17
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Technical Team and Operation Team to conduct devise the plan in case Business
Continuity or Disaster Management is invoked.

Internal Financial Controls

Your Company had appointed Chief - Internal Audit & Risk Management of Tata Power as
Internal Auditor of the Company. The Internal Auditors endeavours to make meaningful
contributions to the organisation’s overall governance, risk management and internal
controls. The function reviews and ensures sustained effectiveness of Internal Financial
Controls by adopting a systematic approach.

Section 143 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the Auditors’ Report shall state
whether the Company has adequate Internal Financial Controls (IFC) system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls. The Statutory Auditors shall report on the
existence of adequate IFC and its operational effectiveness for the financial year.

As per section 134 of the Act, Directors of the Company, based on the representations
received from the Management are to confirm in the Directors Responsibility Statements
that the Internal Financial controls are not only adequate, but are also operating
effectively.

With this objective in mind and to fulfil the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, in
FY18, the internal auditors have identified key controls. The Company has adopted the
Committee of Sponsoring Organisations (COSO) framework. COSO is a leading framework,
which provides guidance on design and evaluation of internal controls. It provides
assurance of financial controls in place at the level of functional heads and at top
management level. This has helped in assessing the effectiveness and efficiency of
operational controls, enhanced governance and consideration of anti-fraud expectations,
reliability of financial reporting and statutory compliances. Attributes with internal control
deficiency are identified with action plan to be taken and the target dates.

For the Business Process level, controls are evaluated through internal audits and Control
Self-Assessment (CSA). These CSAs have also been rolled out across all functions in the
Company.

The Internal Audit process includes review and evaluation of process robustness,
effectiveness of controls and compliances. It also ensures adherence to policies and
systems, and mitigation of operational risk perceived under each area under audit. Internal
Audits are classified into vital, essential and desirable, based on the analysis of process
impact of Company’s Strategic Objectives. Post the audit, process is rated through Risk
Control Index (RCI) and Process Robustness Index (RCI) given by the Internal Auditors.
Significant observations including recommendations for improvement of the business
processes are reviewed with the Management before reporting to the Audit Committee.
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13.

13.1

The Audit Committee reviews the Internal Audit Reports and the status of implementation
of the agreed action plan.

On the review of Internal Audit observations and actions taken on audit observations, we
can state that there are no adverse observations having material impact on financials or
commercial implication or material non- compliances which have not been acted upon.

Control Self-Assessment (CSA): CSA process followed this year as well, whereby responses
of all process owners are used to assess built in internal controls in each process. This
helps the Company to identify focus audit areas, design audit plan and support CEO/CFO
certification for internal controls. The CSA questionnaire is designed to test effectiveness of
deployment of existing controls for processes including the ones which are not to be
audited as per audit plan. The responses received from process owners on the
questionnaire are analysed.

Process Robustness Index (PRI): The processes are examined to assess their robustness
primarily from the perspective of system driven controls which ensure deviations from the
defined process do not occur due to manual interventions. In case controls have not been
embedded in the system, other compensating controls such as maker-checker are
exercised to assess the robustness of the process. This index is computed on the basis of
existence of robust controls and not on the basis of extent of implementation of these
controls.

The Statutory Auditors carry out a limited quarterly review and these reports have not
reported any adverse findings. The Company’s Secretarial Audit carried out in the current
year has not indicated any major lapses.

Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism:

The Company believes in the conduct of affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent
manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical
behaviour. In line with the Tata Code of Conduct (TCOC), any actual or potential violation,
howsoever insignificant or perceived as such, is a matter of serious concern for the
Company. The role of the employees in reporting such violations of the TCOC is critical to
its implementation.

Vigil Mechanism has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for employees
of the Company to approach the Chief Ethics Counsellor (CEC).

Sustainability

Safety — Care for our People
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1 Fatality (Number) NIL NIL

Safety Statistics FY18:

2 LTIFR (Lost Time Injuries Frequency Rate per NIL NIL

million man hours)

3 Total Injuries Frequency Rate (TIFR) (Number of NIL NIL

Injuries per million man hours)

4  First Aid Cases (Number) NIL NIL

13.2

Care for our Community/Community Relations

Your Company has a CSR Policy in place( http://tatapowertrading.com/about-us/csr.php ),
the CSR Committee passed the policy on 21* October, 2015, which was revisited on 13t
May, 2016 and again new policy was adopted on 22.10.2019 by the Board of Directors. The
CSR budget for FY 20 was X 60 lacs.

Your Company has invested in following schemes under CSR activities:

e Tree Plantation Drive

The Company organized a tree plantation drive by planting more than 400 saplings with
support of local Authority at designated spots in the Noida city. Over 20 volunteers took
part in the well-orchestrated campaign which witnessed participation from employees of
the Company. This is our small attempt to reduce the carbon footprints that we generate
in the world of rapid urbanization and a drive with the novel intent of increasing the green

cover of the beautiful city.
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e Water Project

Water is the primary necessity, without it, a living being simply cannot survive. Yet, it is a
horrific fact that there are billions of people around the world who do not have access to
clean drinking water.

Unfortunately, clean water is still inaccessible for many and will remain that way until
governments are willing to take a stand. Clean water is essential not only to remain safe
from disease but also to maintain good health and in order provide clean, safe drinking
water. In this regard the Company launched two projects

a) The Company installed a small scale Reverse Osmosis (RO) Water Treatment System at
an one of the Out-of-Home Care (O.H.C.) Ghar where girl children resides who are
parentless, abandoned or abused children and are in need of protection.

b) The Company initiated a project for setting up of Boring & Submersible water pump
solution at Government Girls School. The school was at remote area and had limited
access to water. The bore well was dug up to 200 ft. and submersible pump was
installed along with requisite Water tank, piping, necessary taps and electrical
arrangement for submersible pump.

e Swachhata Hi Seva Activity

As Swachh Bharat Mission was launched throughout length and breadth of the country as
a national movement. The campaign aims to achieve the vision of a ‘Clean India’. The
Company supported this movement by initiating a cleanliness drive at Noida. The
employees participated in the event with great enthusiasm and made a determination for
Ek Kadam Swatchta Ki Oore.
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o SASTRA UNIVERSITY

CSR activities undertaken by SASTRA University in areas surrounding the University in
Tamil Nadu.

Social Capital and Institution Building

The objective of the project was to empower local unemployed youth through pre-
approved skill development programs to pursue their future micro-venture/
business and create avenues for their sustainable livelihood through
entrepreneurial orientation and assistance.

The target group was 100 trainees to be identified from 10 villages near SASTRA
University.

After conducting a baseline survey to identify beneficiaries, lectures and hands on
experience was to be provided by experienced trainers to fuel entrepreneurial spirit
within the beneficiaries so they may consider opening their own micro-venture
businesses after the program.

Livelihood Improvement through capacity building of SHG

The objective was dissemination of product information and providing a platform
for "Exhibition-cum-sale" of products made by them.

e Distribution Of Food

In the wake of India’s nationwide lockdown due to COVID-19, migrant/daily wage workers

had no means to earn a living in the cities and had no money to buy food. The Company

with support of an NGO and assisted by Police, began a relief operation for poor and

needy by distributing nearly 511 food packets in East Delhi area.
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Tata Power Community Development Trust (TPCDT):

Your company signed an MOU with TPCDT for an amount of % 16 lakhs in FY19,which
was dispersed for various programs in Haldia, details of which are given below:

e Education Excellence Program

The objective of the program was- (i) To reduce drop out and enhance enrolment;
(i) To retain all children in project area between 6 to 14 years age group; (iii) To
ensure increased learning outcome; and (iv) To ensure equal educational
opportunity for all with focus on girl child in Haldia. Key activities undertaken to
achieve the objectives include - awareness in parents and children - for
mainstreaming dropouts/enhancing enrolment; education resources in primary
schools; assessment of reading/writing/retention skills for students; Teachers
Training; formulation and development of TLM and night coaching & career
guidance.

e Farm and Non Farm Livelihood
The objective of the program was : (i) to improve the quality of life for the
community; (i) to enhance income level of the communities especially women. Key
Initiatives undertaken to achieve the objective were: (i) promotion of pisciculture
and new agronomic practices, (ii) skill development of SHG women (Farm/Non
farm), (iii) monitoring and treatment to commercial Vegetable Cultivation, fishery
,animal husbandry etc.

e Empowering women through SHG promotion
The objective of the program was : To promote and strengthen Women SHGs and
SHG-based institutions thereby empowering women for sustainable livelihood. The
Key initiatives undertaken to achieve objective were:__Promotion of SHGs, Credit
linkage with bank, Promotion of income generation activities and linkage with Govt.
Schemes.
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II. ARADHYA VT Centre:

Your Company has spent % 8.25 lakhs in the programmed undertaken at ARADHYA VT
Centre in Shakurpur (Delhi). Vocational trainings were provided to students (50% under
SC/ST category) under various categories as indicated below:

= Computer

» Beauty Culture

= Stitching & Tailoring

The Centre also provided tutorial classes for children[For school-going children (Class 1

to 8) Jwho are weak learners
- ow
% ‘r = Al ,
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. ARADHYA VT Centre {CSA Colony}

Your Company has spent ¥ 7.48 lakh in the programmed undertaken at ARADHYA VT
Centre in CSA Colony. Vocational trainings were provided to students (50% under
SC/ST category) under various categories as indicated below:

= Computer Training

» Beauty Culture

= Cutting & tailoring

* Hospitality

The Centre also provided tutorial classes for children[For school-going children (Class 1 to
8) Jwho are weak learners

IV. ANK VT Center {Badli}

Your Company has spent ¥ 5.75 lakh in the programmed undertaken at ANK VT Center
{Badli}. Vocational trainings were provided to students (50% under SC/ST category) under
various categories as indicated below:

= Electrician

= Stitching & tailoring
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The Centre also provided tutorial classes for children [For school-going children (Class 1 to
8) ]who are weak learners

V. ASHIMA FOUNDATION - SEC 3, ROHINI

Your Company has spent % 2.5 lakh in the programmed undertaken at Ashima Foundation
, Sector - 3, Rohini. Vocational trainings were students (50% under SC/ST category) under
various categories as indicated below:

=  Computer

= Beautician

| RS e

I =

VL ASHIMA FOUNDATION - SEC 11, ROHINI

Your Company has spent % 2.5 lakh in the programmed undertaken at Ashima Foundation
, Sector - 3, Rohini. Vocational trainings were students (50% under SC/ST category) under
various categories as indicated below:

=  Computer

= Stitching & Tailoring

)
SHOT ON REDMI Y3 SHOT ON REDMI Y3
@ O 50l camera [ 1©) Al DUAL CAMERA

VI.  PARIVARTAN PROJECT — ELECTRICAL TRAINING TO THE YOUTH OF JJ THROUGH PSSC

Your Company has spent X 3.42 lakhs to impart training to work on electricity network to
10th pass candidate from JJ Clusters (Through Power Sector Skill Council (PSSC), Ministry of
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Power) in coordination with SIG and DOSEC and to induct them as lineman through BA
agencies working for Tata Power-DDL.

VIILSelf Help Group- SAVE & MATRIX

Your Company has spent % 1.63 lakh with SAVE & MATRIX for this programme. The
purpose was to build long term association with women beneficiaries by providing
livelihood options which will help them build a sense of social and economic
empowerment and commitments in them.

13.3 Care for our Environment

Your Company addresses various aspects of environment conservation such as resource
conservation, energy efficiency, renewable energy certificates trading. Your Company
strives to create environmentally responsible employees by promoting and showcasing
individual efforts in green initiatives through Greenolution. The employees consider the
aspects of Greenolution while carrying out process reengineering.
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Human Resources

14.1 Manpower

As on March 31%, 2020, Tata Power Trading Company Ltd. had 42 employees on its
payrolls.

14.2 CAPABILITY DEVELOPMENT

Key initiatives taken:

Based on training needs identified at the start of the Training Cycle, training programs
were deployed for all employees. These training needs were identified with view of current
and future functional requirements. Various trainings and workshops were organized
during the year for the development and enhancement of skills of employees. Some of the
key programs that were organized include the following:

e Introduction of Web based training Platform- " Gyankosh" providing both Behavioral
and Functional Trainings to Employees.

e Knowledge sharing sessions are being conducted by external and internal team
members

e Workshop on TBEM was organized by TATA business Excellence Group

e Awareness programs on POSH (Policy on Sexual Harassment) , Ethics and safety was
organized for employees.

14.3 Sexual Harassment

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the work place and has adopted
a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment in line with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints
of sexual harassment at workplace.

The policy has set guidelines on the redressal and enquiry process that is to be followed by
complainants and the ICC whilst dealing with issues related to sexual harassment at the
work place towards any woman associates. All women associate(permanent, temporary,
contractual and trainees) as well as any woman visiting the Company’s office premises or
women service providers are covered under this policy. Multi-pronged efforts have been
made during FY20 for awareness of provisions and redressal of complaints as also to
continue with and improve the work climate in all establishments where women
employees feel safe and secure.
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Tata Power, the holding company has adopted the POSH policy and has constituted an
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) comprising of members from its divisions and
additionally from its major subsidiary companies including your company. Complaints if
any received will be handled by this committee.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off
during the FY20:

No of complaints received: NIL
No of complaints disposed off: NIL
No of cases pending for more than 90 days: NIL

No of workshops/ awareness program: 4

Nature of action taken by the employer or District officer: Not applicable
Credit Rating

Your Company’s long term credit facilities from banks are rated as '‘A+' by India Rating
Agency and short term credit facility from banks was rated as ‘A1+' by India Rating
Agency. Commercial Paper of the Company has been assigned '‘A1+’ rating with the
guarantee of Tata Power.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186
On one occasion during the previous year, the company had invested in Inter-
Corporate Deposit as a part of normal working capital management. The details of

investment are provided in Annexure IV.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

g in crore
Particulars — Standalone FY20 FY19
Foreign Exchange Earnings mainly on account of interest, 0 0
dividend
Foreign Exchange Outflow mainly on account of: 0 0
Fuel purchase 0 0
Interest on foreign currency borrowings, NRI dividends 0 0
Purchase of capital equipment, components and spares and 0 0
other miscellaneous expenses
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Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits. ( refer Annexure VI)

Disclosure of Particulars - Related Party Transactions

The Board has adopted a Policy on dealing with transactions entered with Related Parties.
Related party transactions can present a potential or actual conflict of interest which may
be against the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders. Considering the
requirements for approval of related party transactions as prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Company has formulated guidelines for identification of related
parties and the proper conduct and documentation of all related party transactions.

During the year, the Company did not enter into any transactions with related parties
which were not at arm’s length. However, the details of transactions with Related Parties as
provided in Annexure - IIL.

Extract of Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92 of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is provided in
Annexure-V.

Employees and Remuneration

The information required under section 197 (12) of the Act read with rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
attached as Annexure V. The information required under Rule 5(2) and (3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
provided in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

The details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future

There are no such material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company'’s operations in future.
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Statutory Auditors

M/s S. R. Batliboi & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants, who are the statutory auditors of your
Company, hold office until the conclusion of the 19" Annual General Meeting.

Cost Auditor

This is not applicable to the Company.

Auditors’ Report

Extract of Auditor’s report is given in Annexure VIIL

Secretarial Audit Report

Extract of Secretarial Auditor’s report is given in Annexure VIL

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of IFC (Internal Financial Controls) and compliance systems
established and maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory
and secretarial auditors including audit of IFC over financial reporting by the statutory
auditors and the reviews performed by Management and the relevant Board Committees,
including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s Internal
Financial Control were adequate and effective during the FY20.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed and that there are no material departures;

They have, in the selection of the accounting policies consulted the Statutory
Auditors and have applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for that period;

They have taken proper and sufficient care, to the best of their knowledge and
ability for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safe guarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

31



TATA POWER TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

W

TATA

28.

(iv) They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(V) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(vi) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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ANNEXURE I — CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Conservation of Energy: The disclosures stipulated under Section 134(3) (m) read with Rule 8 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014 pertaining to conservation of energy are not applicable to
the Company.

A. Conservation of Energy - Nil

B. Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

1 Efforts, in brief, made towards Technology Absorption,

. . . Nil

adaptation and innovation
2 Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts Nil
3 In case of imported technology (imported during the last five | Nil

years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year),
following information may be furnished:
a) Technology Imported
b) Year of Import
c) Has technology been fully absorbed
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken
place, reasons thereof and future plans of action

1. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION - NIL
2. TECHNOLOGIES BEING REVIEWED/ADOPTED - NIL
On behalf of the Board of Directors,
Praveer Sinha

Chairman
(DIN: 01785164)

Mumbai, 29.04.2020
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Annexure II — Annual Report on CSR Activities

1

A brief outline of the
company'’s CSR policy,
including overview of projects
or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to
the web-link to the CSR policy
and projects or programs.

TPTCL has been actively working on five thrust areas in
CSR:

« Primary Education with focus on girl child

« Health and Drinking Water

« Livelihood and Employability

« Social Capital and Infrastructure

* Inclusive Growth

The Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects
or programs proposed to be undertaken, are provided on
the Company website:
http://tatapowertrading.com/pdf/CSR-Policy.pdf

2 | The composition of the CSR 1. Mr. Ajay Kapoor (Chairman)
committee 2. Mr. Sanjay Banga
3. Ms. Kiran Gupta
3 | Average net profit of the T 29.64 crore (as per Section 198 of Companies Act,
company for last three 2013)
financial years.
4 | Prescribed CSR Expenditure T 60lakhs
(two percent of the amount as
in item 3 above)
5 | Details of CSR spent during the financial year
(@) | Total amount to be spent for T 60 lakhs
the financial year (Actual spent ¥ 60 lakhs)
(b) | Amount unspent, if any Nil

(@

Manner in which the amount
spent during the financial year
is detailed below

Details provided below
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
CSR Sector in which | Project/ Amount | Amount Cumulat | Amount
Sl. No | project or | the project is Program | Outlay Spent on ive spent:
activity covered (Budget) | projects or | expendit | Direct or
identified project | programs | ure up through
wise {In INR} to impleme
(Specify {InINR} | Subheads: |31/03/1 | ntation
local Directand |9 agency
area/ Overheads | {In INR}
state and
district)
e Child
Primary
A | ARADEYAL pqucation | S2KUPUT g o5 jakh | 8.25lakh | 825 lakh | Direct
VT Center . Delhi
e Vocational
Training
e Child
Primary CSA
B ARADHYA Education Colony, 7.48 lakh 7.48 lakh 7.48 lakh Direct
VT Center . .
e Vocational Delhi
Training
e Child
Primary .
C ANK VT Education | adlh 5.751lakh | 5.75lakh | 5.75lakh | Direct
Centre . Delhi
e Vocational
Training
AASHIMA e Vocational Sector - 3 lakh lakh i
D | FOUNDATI < O'=3 | 2501akh | 2012 2.0 la Direct
Training Rohini
ON
AASHIMA e Vocational Sector - lakh lakh i
E | FOUNDATI < | 2501akh | 2°01a 2.0 la Direct
Training 11, Rohini
ON
F ROSHINI d VO(.:a.tlon Delhi 200 lakh 2.00 lakh 2.00 lakh Direct
Training
e Electrical
PARIVART training to 5 lakh 5 lakh .
G AN the youth of | Delhi 342 lakh | 3421 3421a Direct
PROJECT JJ through
PSSC
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(1 (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
CSR Sector in which | Project/ Amount | Amount Cumulat | Amount
Sl. No | project or | the project is Program | Outlay Spent on ive spent:
activity covered (Budget) | projects or | expendit | Direct or
identified project | programs | ure up through
wise {In INR} to impleme
(Specify {In INR} | Subheads: | 31/03/1 | ntation
local Directand |9 agency
area/ Overheads | {In INR}
state and
district)
d I matrx | Ig ;Z”"ert 163 lakh | 163lakh | 1.63lakh | Direct
percentage
of matured
ABHA, WLCs
Beneficiaries .
Coordinators,, Delhi :
I SAVE nd othor 1.63lakh 1.63lakh 1.63lakh Direct
SIG
beneficiaries
into SHG
groups.
Infra;truct e Child
J uren Primary Noida 0.91 lakh 0.91 lakh 0.91lakh Direct
Governme Education
nt School
e Social .
Capital and TharTJavur, :
Institution Tamil Direct
SASTRA Building Nadu
K University Thanjavur | 4.4 lakh 4.4 lakh 4.4 lakh
e Livelihood &
improvemen | Kumbakon Direct
t am, Tamil
Nadu
e Education Haldia,
L TPCDT West 6.5 lakh 6.5 lakh Impleme
excellence Bengal ntation
16 lakh
e Farmand Agency -
Non-Farm 9.5 lakh 9.5 lakh TPCDT
Livelihood
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(1) (2) (3) 4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
CSR Sector in which | Project/ Amount | Amount Cumulat | Amount
Sl. No | project or | the project is Program | Outlay Spent on ive spent:
activity covered (Budget) | projects or | expendit | Direct or
identified project | programs | ure up through
wise {In INR} to impleme
(Specify {InINR} | Subheads: |31/03/1 | ntation
local Directand |9 agency
area/ Overheads | {In INR}
state and
district)
Project and
Skill Building
o Tree
M Plantation Noida 0.44 lakh 0.44 lakh 0.44 lakh Direct
Drive
e Reverse
Osmosis Greater
N (RO) Water i 2.31 lakh | 231 lakh | 2.31 lakh Direct
Noida
Treatment
System
e Food
o] Donation Delhi, NCR 0.76 0.76 0.76 Direct
(COVID-19)
Total - - - - 60 lakh -
6 In case the company has The Company has met the requirement of amount to be
failed to spend the two spend on CSR activities.
percent of the average net
profit of the last three
financial years or any part
thereof, the company shall
provide the reasons for not
spending the amount in its
Board Report
7 A responsibility statement of | The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in

the CSR Committee that the
implementation and
monitoring of CSR policy, is
in compliance with CSR
objectives and Policy of the

compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.
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(1) (2) (3) 4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
CSR Sector in which | Project/ Amount | Amount Cumulat | Amount
Sl. No | project or | the project is Program | Outlay Spent on ive spent:
activity covered (Budget) | projects or | expendit | Direct or
identified project | programs | ure up through
wise {In INR} to impleme
(Specify {In INR} | Subheads: | 31/03/1 | ntation
local Directand |9 agency
area/ Overheads | {In INR}
state and
district)
company

Mumbai, 29.04.2020

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Praveer Sinha
Chairman
(DIN: 01785164)
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Annexure III — Related Party Transactions

e Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions -
http://tatapowertrading.com/resources/downloads.php

e Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain
arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto (FORM AOC-2)

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of the | Nature of | Duration Salient Date (s) of | Amount paid
related  party | contracts/ terms approval by | as advances, if
and nature of | arrangements/ including the Board any
relationship transactions value

None

Details of material contracts or arraniement or transactions at arm’s Ienith basis:

Tata Power Delhi Distribution Supply of Power April 2019 to March 2020
Limited

(Fellow subsidiary)

Tata Power Solar Systems Limited  Supply of Power April 2019 to March 2020
(Fellow Subsidiary)

Welspun Renewable Energy Rendering of Services April 2019 to March 2020
Limited

(Fellow Subsidiary)

Welspun Solar Kannada Private Rendering of Services April 2019 to March 2020
Limited

(Fellow Subsidiary)

Tata Power Renewable Energy Rendering of Services April 2019 to March 2020
Limited

(Fellow Subsidiary)

Vagarai Windfarms Limited Rendering of Services April 2019 to March 2020
(Fellow Subsidiary)

The Tata Power Company Limited  Revenue from Sale of REC April 2019 to March 2020
(Holding Company) certificate

The Tata Power Company Limited Purchase of Power April 2019 to March 2020

(Holding Company)
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Maithon Power Limited

(Fellow Subsidiary)

The Tata Power Company Limited
(Holding Company)

Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
(Fellow Subsidiary)

The Tata Power Company Limited
(Holding Company)

Tata Power Delhi Distribution
Limited

(Fellow subsidiary)

Maithon Power Limited

(Fellow Subsidiary)

Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
(Fellow Subsidiary)

The Tata Power Company Limited
(Holding Company)

Coastal Gujarat Power Limited
(Fellow subsidiary)

Welspun Renewable Energy
Limited

(Fellow Subsidiary)

Welspun Solar Kannada Private
Limited

(Fellow Subsidiary)

Chirasthayee Saurya Limited
(Fellow subsidiary)

Dagachhu Hydro Power
Corporation Limited

(JV of Holding Company)
Dagachhu Hydro Power
Corporation Limited

(JV of Holding Company)

Mumbai, 29.04.2020

Purchase of Power
Receiving of Services
Receiving of Services
Reimbursement of Expenses

Reimbursement of Expenses

Reimbursement of Expenses
Reimbursement of Expenses
Inter Corporate Loans
Inter Corporate Loans

Reimbursement of Expenses

Reimbursement of Expenses

Rendering of Services

Purchase of Power

Purchase of Power

April 2019 to March 2020
April 2019 to March 2020
April 2019 to March 2020
April 2019 to March 2020

April 2019 to March 2020

April 2019 to March 2020
April 2019 to March 2020
April 2019 to March 2020
April 2019 to March 2020

April 2019 to March 2020

April 2019 to March 2020

April 2019 to March 2020

April 2019 to March 2020

April 2019 to March 2020

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Praveer Sinha
Chairman
(DIN: 01785164)
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ANNEXURE V — ANNUAL RETURN

Form No. MGT-9
Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on 31* March 2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

1. CIN U40100MH2003PLC143770

2. Registration Date 31 December, 2003

3. Name of the Company Tata Power Trading Company Limited

4. Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Company

5. Address of the Registered office and contact Carnac Receiving Station, 34-Sant Tukaram Road,
details Carnac Bunder, Mumbai, Maharashtra

6. Whether listed Company No

7. Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar N.A.
and Transfer Agent, if any.

1L PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of the
products / services service Company
1 Electrical Energy 2716 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Sl Name and Address | CIN/GLN Holding/ % Of Applicable
No of the Company Subsidiary/Asso | Shares Section
ciate Held
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1 The Tata Power
Company Limited

L28920MH1919PLC000567

Holding

100%

2(46)

IV.SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Shareholding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of

the year (in crore)

No. of Shares held at the end of the

year (in crore)

Demat | Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the year

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt (s)

d) Bodies Corp.

- 1.60

1.60

100%

1.60

1.60

100%

0%

e) Banks / FI

f) Any Other....

Sub-total (A) (1):-

- 1.60

1.60

100%

1.60

1.60

100%

0%

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals

b) Other —
Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / FI

e) Any Other....

Sub-total (A) (2):-

Total shareholding
of Promoter (A) =

(A)(MN)+(A)(2)

- 1.60

1.60

100%

1.60

1.60

100%

0%

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)
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Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

¢) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for

GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total - 1.60 1.60 100% - 1.60 1.60 100% 0%
(A+B+C)
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
| Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of the %
No. | Name of the year year change
in
No. of % of % of No. of % of %of share
Shares total Shares Shares total Shares holding
Shares Pledged Shares Pledged | during
of the / of the / the
Compan | encumb Compan | encumb | year
y ered y ered
to total to total
shares shares
1 The Tata Power 15,999,994 100% - 15,999,994 100% - -
Company Limited
2 The Tata Power 1 0% - 1 0% - -
Company Limited
and
Mr. H M Mistry
3 The Tata Power 1 0% - 1 0% - -
Company Limited
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| Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of the %
No. | Name of the year year change
in
No. of % of % of No. of % of %of share
Shares total Shares Shares total Shares holding
Shares Pledged Shares Pledged during
of the / of the / the
Compan | encumb Compan | encumb | year
y ered y ered
to total to total
shares shares
and
Mr. Jeraz E
Mahernosh
4 | The Tata Power 1 0 - 1 0% - 0%
Company Limited
and
Mr. Anand Agarwal
5 | The Tata Power 1 0 - 1 0% - 0%
Company Limited
and Mr. Pradip
Roy
6 | The Tata Power 1 0 - 1 0% - 0%
Company Limited
and
Mr. Prasad Bagade
7 | The Tata Power 1 0 - 1 0% - 0%
Company Limited
and
Mr. Soundraya
Kasturi
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify if there is no change)
Sl. | Name Shareholder | Shareholding at the | Date Reason Increase/(Decrea | Cumulative
No. beginning of the se) in Shareholding during the
year Shareholding year
No. of % of total No. of | % of No. of % of total
shares shares of shares | total shares shares of the
the shares Company
Company of the
Compan
y
1 The Tata Power 15,999,9 100% No change - - | 15,999,994 100%
Company Limited 94
2 The Tata Power 1 0% No change - - 1 0%
Company Limited
and
Mr. H M Mistry
3 The Tata Power 1 0% No change - - 1 0%
Company Limited

45




TATA POWER TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

W

TATA

Sl.
No.

Name Shareholder

Shareholding at the
beginning of the
year

% of total
shares of
the

Company

No. of
shares

Date Reason

Increase/(Decrea
se) in
Shareholding

Cumulative
Shareholding during the
year

No. of | % of
shares | total
shares
of the
Compan

y

% of total
shares of the
Company

No. of
shares

and
Mr. Jeraz E
Mahernosh

The Tata Power
Company Limited
and

Mr. Anand Agarwal

1 0%

No change -

1 0%

The Tata Power
Company Limited
and

Mr. Prasad Bagade

1 0%

No change -

1 0%

The Tata Power
Company Limited
and

Mr. Soundraya
Kasturi

1 0%

No change -

1 0%

The Tata Power
Company Limited
and Mr. Pradip Roy

1 0%

No change -

1 0%

(iv) Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other

than directors, promoters and holders of GDRs and

ADRs):
Sl Name of Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during
No. Shareholders the year the Year

No. of shares

% of total shares of

the Company

No. of shares

% of total shares
of the Company

Not Applicable

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. | Name of Shareholding at the Date Reason Increase/Decrease in Cumulative
No. | Shareholder beginning of Shareholding Shareholding during
the year the Year
No. of | % of total No. of % of total No. of | % of total
shares | shares of shares shares of shares | shares of
the the the
Company Company Company
NONE

46




W

TATA POWER TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
TATA

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Figures in T crore

Secured Loans
excluding Unsecured Deposits Total
. Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 174.10 - - 174.10
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.24 - - 0.24
Total (i+ii+iii) 174.33 - - 174.33
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
- Addition 1110.95 307 - 1417.95
- Reduction (971.12) (307) - (1278.12)
Net Change 139.83 - - 139.83
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 28.62 - - 28.62
i) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.21 - - 0.21
Total (i+ii+iii) 28.83 - - 28.83

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Figures in X lakhs

Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Sanjeev
no. Mehra. MD
(01-04-2019 to
30.11.2019
1. | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 183.38
Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 1.57
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option -
3. Sweat Equity -
4 Commission -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...(performance based)
5. Others, Retirement Benefits 3.47
Total (A) 188.43
Ceiling as per the Act
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B.  Remuneration to other Directors:

Figuresin ¥
SI. | Name of Directors Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount
no. Fee for Commissio | Others,
attending n please
board / specify
committee
Meetings
L Independent Directors Not Applicable
Total (A)
IL. Other Non-Executive
Directors
Mr. Ashok Sethi Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Praveer Sinha Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Ashok Sethi Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Ajay Kapoor Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Sanjay Banga Nil Nil Nil Nil
Ms. Kiran Gupta 2,88,000* Nil Nil 2,88,000
Total (B) Nil Nil
Total Managerial Nil Nil
Remuneration

* excluding TDS.
None of the NEDs had any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than Managing Director/Manager/ Whole Time

Director
Figures in X lakh
SI. | Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Bhaskar
no. Sarkar (CEO)
(from 01-12-2019
to 31-03-2020)
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income- 30.77
tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 2.21

() Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option -

3. Sweat Equity -

4. Commission -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...(performance based)
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Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Bhaskar
no. Sarkar (CEO)
(from 01-12-2019
to 31-03-2020)
5. Others, Retirement Benefits 1.61
Total 34.59
Figures in X lakh
Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Suranjit
no. Mishra (CFO)
(from 01-04-2019
to 31-07-2019
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income- 28.85
tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0.12
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option -
3. Sweat Equity -
4. Commission -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...(performance based)
5. Others, Retirement Benefits 0.94
Total 29.92
Figures in X lakh
Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Lalit Narang
no. (CFO)
(from 1-8-2019 to
24-01-2020)
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income- 14.22
tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0.40
() Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option -
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Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Lalit Narang
no. (CFO)
(from 1-8-2019 to
24-01-2020)
4, Commission -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...(performance based)
5. Others, Retirement Benefits 0.66
Total 15.28
Figures in X lakh
Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Ms. Ritu Gupta
no. (CFO)
(from 25-01-2020
to 31-03-2020
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income- 8.71
tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0.37
() Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option -
3. Sweat Equity -
4. Commission -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...(performance based)
5. Others, Retirement Benefits 0.45
Total 9.53
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Figures in ¥ lakh

Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Ms. Neha Malik
no. (CS)
(from 1.4.2019 to
31.3.2020)
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income- 28.23
tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 -
© Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option -
Sweat Equity -
4, Commission -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...(performance based)
5. Others, Retirement Benefits 1.30
Total 29.53

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Authority | Appeal
[RD / made, if
NCLT/ any
COURT] (give
Details)

Type Section of Brief Details of
the Description | Penalty /
Companies Punishment/
Act Compounding
fees imposed
Penalty
Punishment None

Compounding

OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment None

Compounding

Mumbai, 29.04. 2020

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Praveer Sinha
Chairman
(DIN: 01785164)
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ANNEXURE-VII
FORM No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2020

(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

THE MEMBERS,

Tata Power Trading Company Limited,

Carnac Receiving Station, 34-Sant Tukaram Road,
Carnac Bunder, Mumbai-400009.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Tata Power Trading Company Limited (hereinafter called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Tata Power Trading Company Limited (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and the information provided by the company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31*' March, 2020,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made
available to us and maintained by Industrial Energy Limited for the financial year ended on 31* March,
2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations, 1992
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time; (Not applicable to the Company
during the audit period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during
the audit period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the

Company during the audit period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009(Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period); and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

The Electricity Act, 2003 and Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Procedure, Terms and
Conditions of grant of trading licence and related matters) Regulations, 2009
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b. The Electricity Act, 2003 and The Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Fixation of Trading
Margin) Regulations, 2010

c. The Electricity Act, 2003 and The Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power Market)
Regulations, 2010

d. The Electricity Act, 2003 and The Electricity Rules, 2005

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and
general meetings.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meeting, Agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance other than those held at shorter notice, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions in the Board Meeting and Committee meeting are carried out unanimously and recorded
in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and committee of the Board of Directors, as the
case may be.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

| further reported that during the audit period no events occurred which had bearing on the Company’s

affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For and behalf of
Sumant Bhargava & Co.
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Sumant K. Bhargava
Proprietor

FCS No. 8250

CP. No.:15656

UDIN:

Date: 20" April, 2020
Place: Mumbai

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an
integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE -A
To,
THE MEMBERS,
Tata Power Trading Company Limited,
Carnac Receiving Station, 34-Sant Tukaram Road,
Carnac Bunder, Mumbai-400009.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and
practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Company.

4. Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
the test basis

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For and behalf of
Sumant Bhargava & Co.

Sumant K. Bhargava
Proprietor

FCS No. 8250

CP. No.: 15656
UDIN:

Date: 20" April, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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SR BaruiBo1 & Co. LLP e hacet N 8

IGI Airport Hospitality Districl, Aerocity
b i New Delhi - 110 037, India

Tel : 491 11 4681 9500

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Tata Power Trading Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Tata Power Trading Company
Limited (“the Company”™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its profit/loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP, 3 Limited Liabiiity Partnaership with LLP identily No. AAS-&,
Reqgd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Floor, Koliata- 700 016
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Chartered Accountants
Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the [Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
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inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall preséntation_. structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act . we give in the
“Annexure 1™ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those;

(¢c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules. 2015, as amended:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2™ to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003 E/E300005

Vo S
per SanjeeYKnmar Singhal
Partner
Membership Number: 095377
UDIN: 20095377TAAAAAG4278

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of under the heading of “Report on other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Tata Power Trading Company Limited (“the Company™)

i. (a)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company

ii. The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly. the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii. (a) The Company has granted loans to one Company covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to
the company's interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated for the
loans granted and the repayment/receipts are regular.

(c) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for more
than ninety days.

iv. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section
186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and,
guarantees, and securities given have been complied with by the company.

Further there are no loans, given in respect of which provisions of section 185 of the Companies
Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly. the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
products/services of the Company.

vii. (a) The Company is generally been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues as applicable to it though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

=T DTS
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, value
added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution.
bank. The Company did not have any loans or borrowing in respect of a Debentures or to
government during the year.

ix. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments) and term
loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

X. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers
and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and, therefore
not commented upon.

xv. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2020
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TATA POWER TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tata Power Trading Company
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Sanjeev
Partner '
Membership/Number: 095377
UDIN: 20095377TAAAAAG4278

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Tata Power Trading Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Tata Power Trading Company
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its profit/loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identily No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the [Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are




S.R. BarLiBoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act , we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

() In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act:

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

W

per Sanjeev Kumar Singhal
Partner

Membership Number: 095377
UDIN: 20095377AAAAAG4278

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2020




Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2020

As at As at
Notes]  31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs T Lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 437075 4,721.07
(b) Intangible Assets =] 36.20 122.86
(c) Financial Assets
(1) Investments 51 - -
(ii) Other financial assets e 1.49) -
(d) Non-current Tax Assets (Net) 10 3957 213.93
{e) Other Non-current Assets It 7.60] 8.00
Total Non-current Assets 4.65561 5.065.“1
Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(1) Trade Receivables L] 34,528 16 56,608.78
(i1} Unbilled Revenue and agency recetvable §.481 30| 11.580.96
(ii1) Cash and cash Equivalent { ¥4 201673 .24
(iv) Other financial assets ] 1.326 10| 1,193 64
(b) Other Current Assets 1 454 16.17
Total Current Assets $6.367.73| 69.407.79
TOTAL ASSETS ?E‘ T-t.ﬂ.ljsl
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Sharc Capital 5] 160000 1,690,001
(b) Other Equity i 2165104 17,595 86|
Total Equity : 13.251.04 19,195.86]
LIABILITIES
Noa-current Lisbilities
{a} Financial Lisbiines
(1) Baorrowmgs 15 2551.32 2.861.50/
(b) Provisions 17 315.66) 305.01
(c) Deferred Tax Liabalities (Nex) 18 80367 1,147.62
Total Noa-current Liabilities MH@] 431413
Current Liabilities
(o) Financial Liabilitics
(1) Borrowmngs 20 0.74 14.266.01
(ii) Trade Payables 21
(a) Total putstanding ducs of inicro enterprises
and small enterprises (Refer note 21(ii)) = =
(b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 18 20 Sopo-ot
(iif) Other Financial Liabilitics 16 967.55 900.39)
(b) Provisions 17 13.57 11.09)
(¢) Current Tax Liabilities (Met) - 112.73
(d) Other Current Liabilities 19 1,686 23 IJS'?.OCI|
Total Current Liabilities 44,101.65 50,963.66,
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 71,023.34 74,473.65|
The sccompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP Tata Power Tradj pany Limited
Chantered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301003E / E300005 =
j
- Samjeev Sin / Ajay Kapoor Kiran Gupta
Partner Director Director
Membership No 5377 DIN-0046663 1 DIN-08196580
o .ft/
Bhaskar Sarkar Ritu Gupta
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Nelff Malik
Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: 29th April, 2020 Date: 29th April, 2020




Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020

For Year ended For Year ended
Notes 3ist March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs % Lakhs
I Revenue from Operations 22 24,794 .49 26,216.19
Il Other Income 25 393.65 231.18
[l Total Income 25,188.14 26,447.37
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of Power Purchased 16,491.27 16,794.62
(b) Employee Benefits Expense 26 915.26 1,100.33
(¢) Finance Costs 27 83932 887.55
(d) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 4&5 453.64 458.09
(e)  Other Expenses 28 1,468.72 1,478.75
Total Expenses 20,168.21 20,719.34
V  Profit Before Tax 5,019.93 5,728.03
VI Tax Expense
Current Tax 2 1,284.00 2,044.66
Tax for earlier years 29 15.56 10.22
Deferred Tax 29 (350.87) (16.61)
948.69 2,038.27
VII Profit for the period 4,071.24] 3,689.76
VIl Other Comprehensive Income
A Add/(Less):
(1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
(a) Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans (21.46) (23.38)
(b) Tax expense 5.40{ 8.17
Total Other Comprehensive Income (16.06)| (15.21)
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII+ VIII) 4.055.18 3.674.55
X Earnings Per Equity Share
(Face Value ¥ 10/~ Per Share)
Basic (%) 30 2545 23.06
Diluted (%) 30 2545 23.06

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 301003E / E300005

per Sanjeev Kumgr Singhal

Partner

Membership No/ 95377 DIN-00466631
Bhaskar Sarkar
Chief Executive Officer
! eh/l\dik
Company Secretary
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Date: 29th April, 2020
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Date: 29th Apnil, 2020

Kiran
Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Statement of cash flows for the period ended 31st March , 2020

For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 501993 5,728.03
Depreciation and amortisation exp of property, plant & 453.64 458.09
Interest income {7.99) (12.98)
Gain arising on financial assets designated as at FVTPL (110.36) (218.20)
Finance cost 839.32 887.55
Loss/{gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.65) (0.03)
Amortization of leasehold land - 0.40
Liability no longer required written back (275.30) (57.71)
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (Net) (160.71) (12.77)
5,757.588 6,772.38
(Increase) / Dy in trade receivabl 222174 (41,837.87)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets 123 (6.19)
(Increase) / Decrease in other Non current assets (1.09) -
(Increase) / Decrease in other current financial assets 2,986.29 24,716.35
| /(D ) in trade payabl 7.202.66 1142264
Increase /(Decrease) on other current liabilities 51923 (9,074.22)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current financial lisbilities 42.04 4873
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions (8.33) 138.72
1296377 (14,591.91)
Cash generated from operations 18,721.65 (7.819.53)
Income taxes paid (1,42567) (1,782.70)
Net cash flow from operating activities 17,295.98 (9.602.23)
Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (18.79) (46.28)
Pr ds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2.80 1.46
Inter company loans given (700.00)) (9,000,00)
Inter company deposits received back 700.00 9,000.00
Purchase of current investments (1,47,888.44)| (2,90,820.00)
Proceeds from sale of current mvestments 1,47,998.80 2,91,038.20
Interest income 799 14 50
Net cash flow from investing activities 102.36] 187.88
Cash flow from financing sctivities
Proceeds from borrowimngs 1,04,329.67 7048515
Repayment of borrowings (1,04,611.73) (70,745.58)
Inter company deposits taken 30,000.00 34,500.00
Inter company deposits repaid (30,000.00) (24.500.00)
Finance costs paid (B42.52) (888.74)
Dividends paid - (1,100.00)
Dividend distribution tax pad - (224.13)
Net cash flow (used in) financing activities (1,124.58)] (2.473.30)
Net (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents 16,273.76 (11,887.65)
Cash and cash cquivalents as st 1st April 2019 (14,257.77) (2,370.12)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March 2020 (Refer note 12) 2,015,99 (14,257.77)
Cash and cash Equivalents (Refer note 12) 2,016.73 8.24
Short term borrowings- Bank overdraft (Refer mote 20) (0.74) (14,266.01)
2,015.99 (14,257.77)]
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For 8.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301003E / E300005 ot
[
Ajay Kapoor Kiran Gupta
Director Director
IN-D0466631 D 8196580
g
B Sarkar Ritu Gupta

Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer

:/-
™ Malik

Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29th April, 2020
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Date: 29th April, 2020




Tata Power Trading Company Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31st March, 2020

A. Equity Share Capital

¥ Lakhs
No. of Shares Amount
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 1,60,00,000 1,600
Issue of Equity Shares during the period - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 1.60,00,000 1.600
Issue of Equity Shares during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 1.60.00.000 1.600
B. Other Equity Z Lakhs
Reserves and Surplus
General Reserve Securities Retained Deemed capital
Description Premium Reserve Earnings contribution Total
from holding
company
Balance as at Ist April, 2018 1,355.00 2.089.50 10,587.09 8.30 14,039.89
Profit for the period - - 3.689.76 - 3,689.76
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) for the year (Net (1521) (1521)
of Tax)
Total Comprehensive Income - - 3,674.55 - 3,674.55
Dividend paid (including tax on dividend) - - 100.00 - 100.00
Tax on Dividend - - 18.58 18.58
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 1,355.00 2,089.50| 14,143.06 8.30| 17,595.86
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 1,355.00 2.089.50 14,143.06 830 17,595.86
Profit for the year - - 4.071.24 - 4,071.24
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) for the year (Net
of Tax) - - (16.06) - (16.06)
Total Comprehensive Income - - 4,055.18 4,055.18
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 1,355.00 2,089.50 18,198.24) 830 21,651.04

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 301003E / E300005

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Tata Power Tra

g Company Limited

Ajay Kapoor Kiran Gupta
Director Director
IN-00466631 DIN-08196580
/—'—"
2 Gpfy
Bhaskar Sarkar Ritu Gupta
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Neh@

Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29th April, 2020

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29th April, 2020




Tats Power Trading Company Limited

i of Financial S
1 Corporate Information:
Tata Power Trading Company Limited 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of The Tata Power Company Limited. The Company is primarily engaged in the business
of trading of electricity across the country, Central Electricity Regulatory C ission (CERC) has granted Category “T" ifi to the Company for

22

2.3

32

33

purposes of power trading, which allows the Company (o trade power units without any quantitative restrictions. The Company sources power from different
public and private sectors utilities and supplies to various consumers being public and private sectors power utilities. The Company is a public limited company
ncorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office of the Company is Camac Receiving station, 34, Sant Tukaram Road, Carnac Bunder, Mumbai -
400009, India.

The financial statement were approved for issue by Board of Directors on 29th April 2020,

Significant accounting policies:
Statement of compliance

The financial have been prepared in d: with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified under the Companies (Indian A g

Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirsment of Division IT of Schedule 3 of the Companies Act 2013 (INDAS

Compliance Schedule 3)

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial state have been prepared on a histonical cost basis, except for certain financial assets & financial liability d at fair value (refer note

32 ing policy regarding financial instruments, note 3 3 regarding financial assets & note 3 4 regarding financial liabilities & equity instrument.)

Use of estimates

The preparation of these financial m conformaty with the jon and prnciples of Ind AS requires the of the Company

mnmkecsnmammdmmpﬁms&maﬁectkmpmodhhwuofmmdhabﬁuﬁmwmmhmmmwummhahmuesuatmdmofme
| and the reported of mcome and exp for the peniods

Estimates and underlying assumptions are ed on an ongomg basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates

are revised and future periods are affected.
Key source of estimation of uncertamnty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of of provision for employee benefits, useful life of property . plant & equi

Other Significant Accounting Policies

Foreign Currencies

The functional currency of the Company s Indian rupee (%), These Fi ial Stat ts are pr d in Indian rupees.

In preparing the financial stat of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional (&m:lgn ies) are gnised at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the ransactions. At the end of each reporting period, y items d d in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date

Exch diffe on y items are ised mn profit or loss i the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency
hnnwwprelaungtommmdercmsmmfmﬁm“pmdmhwuse which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign t ings. Ti 1on gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are

mcluded m determining net profit for the period in w'hlch the l:raus&cuom is settled.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and

financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or tssue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropnate, on imbal recogmtion. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acq of financial assets or financial

labilities at fair value through profit or loss are recogmised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.
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Classification of financial assets .
Debt nstruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently dat ised cost (except for debt i that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss on ininal recognition)

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets i order to collect contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Debts instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of pnincipal and interest on the prncipal amount
outstanding.
Debt instruments in fair value through Profit or loss category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in Profit and loss

Effective interest methed

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on imitial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for financial assets other than those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss. Interest
income is recognised in the Statement of profit and Loss and is mcluded in the “Other mcome™ line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments i equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL. unless the Company urevocably elects on mnitial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair
wvalue in other comprehensive income for i in equity which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost erteria or FVTOC] cniteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the
amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost critenia or debt mstruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a or gnition i i y that would arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on differsnt bases

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of sach reporting peniod, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest eamed on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income’
line tem. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is blished. it is probable that the i
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of
dividend can be measured rehiably

Derecognition of financial assets

The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the i ion ived and ivabl
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each date of bal sheet whether a fi ial asset or a Company of fi ial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit
losses to be d i ises lifetime d losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not

igh a loss all e. The Comg Enis

afi mg 1on. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or
at an amount equal to the life tme expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition..

¥

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in i with the sub of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial hability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity 1 18 any t that evid a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by

the Company are

d at the pi d ived, net of direct issue costs,
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a)

The following are the T ised in of Profit and Loss i respect of short term lease : (in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  March
3lst 2020

Expenses related to short term leases 133.32

| Expenses related to leases of low value assets. excluding short term leases of low value assets =

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

The Company at each reg ¢ date, whether there 15 an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or Cash-
generatng umit’s (CGL) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate Cash mflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable the asset is idered impaired and 1s wnitten down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future Cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the nme value of money and the risks specific to the asset. in determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken

mio account. If No such ransactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are t d by valuation multiples,
quoted share Prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indi 5

The Company bases its imparrment calculation on detailed budgets and fi leul which are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs to
which the individual assets are all d. These budgets and fi lculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth

rate is calculated and applied to project future Cash flows after the fifth vear to estimate Cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets'forecasts, the Company extrapolates Cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
mcreasmgmtembe]umﬁcd T.nnnycase this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the market in which the asset is used.

Imp losses of inuing of including impairment on inventorigs, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties
previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous
revaluation surplus. For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have & d. If such ind exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the iptions used to di ine the asset's recoverable amount since the
last impai loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the camying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying an impa loss is recognised

Cash Flow Statement
Cashﬁuwsarerzpmedusmsﬂmmduemme!hoiwhacbypmﬁibefmmuad;umdfw&eeﬂ%ﬂsofmmmomofammshm any deferrals or

accruals of past or future of g cash receipts or p and item of or exp d with investing or fi g cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Operating cycle

Considenng the nature of business actnvities, the operating cycle has been assumed to have duration of 12 months, Accordingly, all assets and liabilities have
been classified as current or noncurrent as per the Group's operating cycle and other eriteria set out in Ind AS | ‘Pr ion of Financial St " and
Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed n the fi al by way of notes to accounts, unless possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefit is remote.

Dividend distribution to equity shareholders of the Company

The Comg ises a Liability to make divid ‘d:smhmnusmnseqzmy}wldersud:enﬂwdumﬂm&omsamhmmedmdmedlmbmmnsnutmgeratlts
dsscretmnAsperthecorpmw{awsm[ndmachmﬁunm:suﬂhmsedwhmnlsappmwdbydg‘ holders. A ponding is
directly in equity.

In case of Interim Dividend, the liability is gnised on its declaration by the Board of Directors.

Change in ing policies and disclosures

Ind AS 12-1 taxes { i lating to i tax 7 of dividend and uncertainty over income tax

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 U inty over b Tax Treatment -

The appendix add the ting for 1 taxes when tax treatments invol i thataffeclslheapphcmonof[ndASl’hnameTm It does
not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include req; lating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The Appendix specifically addmssenhe following:

Whether an entitv considh rtain tax tr

The assumptions an entitv makes about the inati ofm.x tments by ion authorities

How an entitv determines taxable orofit (tax loss). tax bases. unused tax losses. unused tax credits and tax rates
How an entitv iders ch in facts and ci

The Company d i thether to ider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the
approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

The Cumpanyapp&eswgmﬁcantjudgememmldmfymgmmiamuescmmmmxtrem

"Upon adoption of the Appendix C to Ind AS 12, the Comy 1 whether it has any riain tax positions. The Company determined, based on its tax

comphance, that it is probable that its tax treatm will be d by the won authorities. The Appendix did not have an impact on the financial
statements of the Company,
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mesal lu:bxhneamclm:ﬁeda:mﬁurvaluelhmughpmﬁmrlusswbmﬂ:eﬁ:mmlhahhtyusheldfortmdmswnudeagrmedasax&umm

through profit or loss.

A financial liability is classified as held for rading i

- [t has been ncurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

- On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking, or

-Ifuademuwmmumdﬂtymdandeﬁemwasahcdmmmm

mealhablhucsthalmuﬂtheld-fur—lndmgandmnotdmgnmcdnatmmmda:amomsodcnslalﬂncnd bseq iod:

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently d at ised cost are determined based on the effective m.tl:restmcﬂwd lmmst
p that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the Finance costs’ line stem.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the d cost of a fi 'I.iabdit)'mdnf llocating interest exp over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly di i d future cash p (including all fees and ponts paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, kmmmmwdmhamwmmumm P 1 life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition

inaeial G

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payment to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Fi tal g issued by a group entity are mitally measured at thewr fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
the higher of
- The amount of loss all determined in dance with 1 q of Ind AS 109, and
= The amount initially recognised less, when appropnate, dmumlmwmmtnfmwmemognmdm d with the principles of Ind AS 18

344 Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company d gnises financial habilines when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged lled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derec 4 and the ideration paid and payable is recogmised in the S of Profit or Loss.

34.5 Leasing arrangement
At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether the Contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right

tocommlrheuseofanmmuﬁ:dmfurapmodofmn:mexchmgefmcmldmnn At inception or on of a that ins a lease
iponent, the Compam mn the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand alone price.

As a lessess

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises night-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses, and adjusted for any of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,

mnitial direct costs incurred. lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease i i ived and esti of costs to di 1

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company g lly uses its inc | borrowing rate at the lease t date if the di rate
implicit i the lease is not readily determinable.

After the commencement . the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. The carrying
amount 15 remeasured when there 1s a change in future lease payments arising from a change in index or rate. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset

As a lessor

Lesseamclasmﬁcdnsﬁnmlemmmetmof&:mmmbmunﬂyaumensksnndrmdsmcldemitoowmmptomclem All
other leases are classified as operating lease The C lease p ived under of g leases as income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term as pant of other mcome

Implementation of Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified in March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on

or after | Apnl 2019 It sets out the principles for the recognition, ion and disel of leases and requires lessees to account for all
Immﬁuamﬂemﬁhxeﬁeﬂmu&lsmﬂuwmemmmgﬁxﬁnmkmmdu Ind AS 17. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially
unchanged from today’ smmnungurderlnda\s 17 [nd AS 116 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under Ind AS 17.

On transition to Ind AS 116, The comp pedient to apply Ind AS 116 only to the that were previously
identified as leases Conmcldmmnmeiamﬁedaslemesmﬁnhdh 17 were not assessed,
Also, the company has applied ption not to recognize nght-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of

feaseswrmorincaseoflowvulueasseu.TheCompanymcuguzestheleasepn}mmsmm&dwﬂhﬂuewIﬁsesumcxmﬂemasﬂu&@-lmMsw
the lease term.




3.6 The areas involving critical esti are: .
i Estimation of defined benefit obligati

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation mvolves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation ts highly itive to changes in these ptions. All mptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers
the interest rates of government bonds m currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality tables.

ii) Fair Value of Investment
The Company has evaluated the fair value of its investment based on fair valuation conducted by an independent expert {Alsa refer note 5.1 and note 33.2), As

per management estimate there 15 no change in the fair value of investment as compared to previous years.

iii) Useful life of property , plant and equipment
As descrnibed in note 2 3 above, the

reviews the esti d useful lives of property plant and equipment at end of each annual reporting period.

i




Tata Power Trading Company Limited
No of Financial ments

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

Accounting Policy

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses Cost mchades
purchase price (Net off trade discount & rebates) and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended wse
and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss Cost
includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are available for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the
Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following assets whose estimated useful life is assessed based on technical advice, taking into account
the regulatory prescribed rates, nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, etc.

Plant and Equipments - Wind Mill : 25 years ( Initial 10 years at 6% on GERC, thereafter 2%)

Plant and Equipments - Solar Plants © |5 years

Motor Vehicles © 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or lass.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

T Lakhs

Plant and Furniture and Office Motor Vehicles Total

Equipment Fixtures Equipment
Cost
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 5.857.53 3.30 865 2591 5,89539
Additions 13.52 - 0.46 483 18.81
Disposals 23.25 0.07 1.68 4.09 29.09
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 5,847.80 3.23 743 26.65 5,885.11
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1st Apnl, 2019 1.146.76 1.58 6,02 19.96 1,174.32
Depreciation Expense 364 36 023 0.91 1.48] 366.98
Disposal of Assets 21.72] 0.06 1.46 3.70 26.94
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 1,489.40 1.75 547 17.74 1.514.36
Net carrying amount
As at 31st March, 2020 4,358.40 148 1.96 8.91 4,370.75|
As at 31st March, 2019 4,710.77 1.72 2.63 5.95 4,721.07

¥ Lakhs
Plant and Furniture and Office
| Equipment Fixtures Equipment Motor Vehicles Total

Cost
Balance as at 1st Apnl, 2018 5,859.59 330 7.83 2591 5,896.63
Additions 111 - 0.82 - 1.93
Disposals 3.17 - - - 3.17
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 5,857.53 3.30 8.65 25.91 5,895.39
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 781.21 1.35 5.14 16.94 804,64
Depreciation Expense 367.29 0.23 0.88 3.02 371.42
Disposal of Assets 1.74 - = - 1.74
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 1146.76) 1.58 6.02 19.96 1,174.32
Net carrying amount
As at 31st March, 2019 4,710.77 1.72 2.63 5.95| 4,721.07
As at 31st March, 2018 5,078.38| 1.95 2.69 8.97 5,091.99
Notes :

Plant and equipment with a carrying amount of Rs. 4326 49 lakhs (as at 315t March, 2019 - Rs 4702 34 lakhs) have been pledged to sec:
borrowings of the Company (see note 15)
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5. Other intangible assets
Accounting Policy

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset. measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Useful lives of intangible assets
Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
Computer software licence : 5 years

¥ Lakhs
Computer software Total
Cost
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 735.64 735.64
Additions - 5
Disposal - =
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 735.64 735.64
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at Ist April, 2019 612.78 612.78
Amortisation expense 86.66 86.66
Disposal - “
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 699.44| 699.44
Net Block
As at 31st March, 2020 36.201 36.20
As at 31st March, 2019 122.86| 122.86
T Lakhs
Computer software Total
Cost
Balance as at Ist April, 2018 735.50 735.50
Additions 0.14 0.14
Disposal - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 735.64 735.64
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 526.13 526.13
Amortisation expense 86.65 86.65
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 612.78 612.78
Net Block
As at 31st March, 2019 122.86 122.86
As at 31st March, 2018 209.37 209.37
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5.1 Non-current Investments

As at Asat As at Asat
31st March, 2020 3list March, 2019 |  31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Numbers Numbers ¥ Lakhs % Lakhs
Investments carried at fair value
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
a) I in Prefy at FVTPL-Tata
ceramics Limited - 3,00,000 - 387.00
Less: Fair value changes - (387.00),
b) [ in equity instr at FVTPL-Power "
Exchange India Limited 25,00,000 25,00,000 250.00 250,00
Less: Fair value changes (250.00)) (250.00)]
Total Aggregate Ung | Investments - -
1) 25,00,000 equity share of ¥ 10 each fully paid up in Power Exchange India Limited
1) During the year has sold its pl in Prefi shares of Tata Ceramics Limited for Rs. 100,
6. Trade Receivables
As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs T Lakhs
Current Trade Receivables
Considered good 54,528.16 56,608.78
Considered doubtful 434,40 575.52
34,962 56 57.184.30
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Trade Receivables {434.40) (575.52)
Total 54,528.16] 56.608.78|

loss.

Age of receivables

The credit period on sale of power up to 90 days. Interest is charged at 15% to 18% per annum on outstanding balance beyond thecredit period.

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for Imde mcewables based on a provision matrix. The
provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward |

The

based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as per the provision matrix l:cmpuled as per historical experience and expected credit

d credit foss allowance is

As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Within the credit period 20,711.96 27,252.76
1-90 days past due 17,141.03 1621891
91-182 days past due 726120 3,533.79
More than 182 days past dus 9,848.37 10,178.84

54,962.56 57,184.30
7. Contract Balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contract with customers

As at Asat
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs| T Lakhs

Contract assets - -
Receivables
Trade receivables (Gross) 54,962.56 57,184.30
Unbilled revenue and agency receivable 8481.80 11,580.96
Less : Allowances for doubtful debts (434.40) (575.52)
Net receivables 63,009.96 68,189.74
Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers 1,523.39 1,025.80
Total Contract Liabilities 1,523.39 1,025.80
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Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Contract assets are transferred to receivables
when the rights become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognized as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

8. Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Contract Contract Contract Contract
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Opening Balance - 1,025.80 - 10105.28
Less : Revenue recognized during the vear from balance at
the beginning of the year - (589.26) - (10,105.28)
Add : Advance received during the year not recognized as
revenue - 1.086.85 - 1,025.80
Add : Revenue recognized during the year apart from
labove 24003.78 = 25628.21 =
Transfer from contract assets to receivables (24.003.78) . (25.628.21) 5
Closing Balance - 1,523.39 - 1,025.80
As at As at
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs| ¥ Lakhs
Balance at the begining of the vear 575.52 597.11
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at (141.12) (21.59)
lifetime expected credit losses
Balance at the end of the year 434.40 575.52
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9. Other Fi ial Assets
Asat Asat
31st March,2020 31st March, 2019
¥ Lakhs| T Lakhs
Non-current
(i) Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits 1.49 -
1.49| -
Current =
(i) Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits I,ZST_ZSH 620.01
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Security Deposits 5.00 5.00
Less: Provision (5.00) {5.00)
1,287.28 620.01
(ii) Advances
Unsecured, considered good
Advances 38.82 573.63
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advances 48.69 68.28
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (48.69) (68.28)
3882 573.63
1.326.10 1.193.64/
10. Non-current tax Assets
As at As at
31st March,2020 31st March, 2019
¥ Lakhs| ¥ Lakhs
Non-current tax assets
Advance Income-tax (Net of provisions) 239.57 21393
13957 2139)




Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

11. Other Assets

Non-current

(i) Prepaid expenses

Current

(i) Balances with Government Authorities
Indirect tax input credit receivable

(i) Other Loans and Advances

Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid Expenses and other advances

As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

T Lakhs T Lakhs

7.60 8.00

7.60 8.00

2.02 240

12.92 13.77

14.94 16.17

12. Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash/cheques on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents include balances
with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank, cash/cheques on hand and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company cash management.

(i)

(ii)

As at As at
31st March, 2020 31ist March, 2019
¥ Lakhs % Lakhs

Balances with Banks:

In Current Accounts 2016.73 8.24
Cash and Cash Equivalent as per Balance Sheet 2016.73 8.24
Bank Overdraft (Refer Note No.20) (0.74) (14266.01)
Cash and Cash Equivalent as per Statement of Cash Flows 2.015.99 (14257.77))
Changes in liabilities from financing activities
Opening balance of Non-Current borrowings (including current
maturity of non-current borrowings) 3,143.56 3403.99
Proceeds during the year
Repayment during the year (282.06) (260.43)
Closing balance 2861.50 3.,143.56|
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13. Equity - Share Capital

As at 31st March, 2020 As at J1st March, 2019
Number ¥ Lakhs Number T Lakhs
Authorised
Equity Shares of 2 10/- each 2,00,00,000 2,000 2,00,00,000 2,000
Preference Shares of # 10/- each 1,80,00,000! 1,800 1,80,00,000 1.800
==3ﬁ322 3.30&
Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
Fully paid equity shares of Rs 10 each. 1.60,00,000 1,600 1,60,00,000 1,600
Total Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid-up Share Capital 1,600 1,600
(i) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Number| T Lakhs Number T Lakhs
Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year 1.60,00,000 1,600 1,60,00,000 1,600
Issued during the year - < E i
2pt for « On ding at the end of the year 1,60,00,000 1,600 1,60,00,000 1,600
(ii)  Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares
Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of 2 10, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.
(iii)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
[ AsatlaMarch,2020 ] As at 3ist March, 2019 |
Number % Holding Number % Holding
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/~ each fully paid
The Tata Power Company Limited, Holding Company 1,60,00,000 100%| 1,60,00,000.00 100%|
14. Other Equity
As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs T Lakhs
General Reserve
Balance at the end of the period 1,355.00{ 1,355.00|
Securities Premium Account
Balance at the end of the period 2,089.50] 2,089.50
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the period 14,143.06 10,587.09
Add: Other Comp ive Income/(Exp ) arising from Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation (Net of Tax) (16.06) (15.21)
Add: Profit for the period 4.071.24 3,689.76
Less: Payment of dividend on equity share  Nil per share (Previous year  0.625 per share) - 100.00
Less: Tax on Dividend - 18.58}
Closing Balance 18,198.24 14,143.06
Deemed capital contribution from Holding company
Balance at the end of the period 8.30 8.30
Total of Other Equity 21,651.04 17,595.86,
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15. Non-current Borrowings

(i) Secured - At Amortised Cost

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Non-current Non-current
T Lakhs % Lakhs
Term Loans from Banks
Kotak Mahindra Bank 2.861.50 3,143.56
Less : Current maturities of long term debt (refer Note 16) (310.18) (282.06)
Total 2,551.32 2,861.50
(ii) Terms of repayment of outstanding balance of term loans are stated below:
As at 31st March, Amount’uutstanding Repayment terms for outstanding | Rate of interest
2020 Rs. in Lacs balance
6 months MCLR + 10 basis
20 equal quarterly installments from |points i.e. 8.40% as at 31st
Kotak Mahindra Bank 350.00 | 30th June, 2020 to 3 1st March, 2025 |March, 2020
6 months MCLR + 10 basis
29 quarterly installments from 30th |points i.e. 8.40% as at 31st
Kotak Mahindra Bank 1,215.68 June, 2020 to 30th June, 2027 March, 2020
6 months MCLR + 10 basis
33 quarterly installments from 16th |points i.e. 8.40% as at 3 1st
Kotak Mahindra Bank 1,295.82 April, 2020 to 16th April, 2028  |March, 2020
Total 2,861.50
As at 3lst Amount outstandin Repayment terms for outstanding ;
March, 2019 Rs. in Lacs > balance Rate ol interest
6 months MCLR + 10 basis
24 equal quarterly installments from |points i.e. 8.95% as at 31st
Kotak Mahindra Bank 420.00 | 30th June, 2019 to 31st March, 2025 |March., 2019
6 months MCLR + 10 basis
33 quarterly installments from 30th |points i.e. 8.95% as at 31st
Kotak Mahindra Bank 1.341.16 June, 2019 to 30th June, 2027 March, 2019
6 months MCLR + 10 basis
37 quarterly installments from 16th |points i.e. 8.95% as at 31st
Kotak Mahindra Bank 1,382.40 April, 2019 to 16th April, 2028 |March, 2019
Total 3,143.56
Security Terms

(iii) Exclusive charge over the moveable fixed assets of the project (ie., Wind & solar projects) and exclusive charge on project receivables.
(iv) Balance outstanding as at 31st March, 2020 is Rs. 2,861.50 lakhs (31st March, 2019 - Rs. 3,143.56 lakhs) of which Rs, 310.18 lakhs (31st
March, 2019 - Rs. 282.06 lakhs) pertains to current maturities of long term borrowings (see note 16).

(v) The Company has not defaulted on repayment of loan and interest payment thereon during the current and previous year.
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16. Other Financial Liabilities

As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
Current
(a) Current Maturities of Long-term Debt (Refer note 15) 310.18 282.06
(b) Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings 20.70 23.90
(c) Other Payables
Security Deposits from Customers 631.30 589.26
Security Deposits from Others 5.37 5.37
Total 967.55 900.59

17. Provisions
Accounting Policy
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past

event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions with charge to
statement of profit and loss. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received from the contract.

As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Z Lakhs T Lakhs
Non-current
Provision for Employee Benefits
Compensated Absences 112.26 108.71
Gratuity 157.80 142.22
Post Employment Medical Benefit 13.50 8.92
Ex-Gratia and retirement gift 22.56 21.28
Hospitalisation in Service and long service award 9.54 23.88
Total Non-current Provisions 315.66 305.01
Current
Provision for Employee Benefits
Compensated Absences 5.96 4.12
Gratuity 5.65 2.65
Post Retirement Medical 0.13 -
Ex-Gratia and retirement gift 1.83
Hospitalisation in Service and long service award H
Total Current Provisions 13.57
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17.1 Employee benefit plan
17.2 Defined contribution plan
The Company makes contributi d: ident fund which is a defined contribution plan for qualifyng employees. The provident fund plan is operated by the Regional

Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the sehmne the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total exp gnised in the St of Profit and Loss 1s Rs. 34.32 Lakhs (for the year ended 315t March, 2019 Rs. 38.69 Lakhs) and rep contribution payabl
to the Employee Provident Fund. As at 31st March, 2020, contribution of Rs. 4.59 Lakhs (as at 315t March, 2019 Rs. 9.08 Lakhs) due in respect of FY 2019-20 (FY 2018-19)
reporting period had not been paid to the plans. The were paid subsequent to the end of the respective reporting periods,

17.3 Defined benefit plan
The Company operates the following unfunded defined benefit plans:

Post Employment Medical Benefits

The Company provides certain post-employment health care benefits to superannuated employees at some of its locations. In terms of the plan, the retired emplovees can
avail free medical check-up and medicines at Company's facilities

Ex-Gratia Death Benefit

The Company has a defined benefit plan granting ex-gratia in case of death during service The benefit consists of a pre-determmed lumpsum amount alongwith a sum
determined based on the last drawn basic salary per month and the length of service.

Retirement Gift
The Company has a defined benefit plan granting a pre-determined sum as retirement gift on superannuation of an emploves.

Gratuti
Th:Gru,;phasadetiuedbeneﬁlmwity plan. The gratuity plan 15 pnmanly governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a
period of five vears are eligible for gratuity. The level of benefits provided depends on the ber’s length of service and salary at the retirement date
Pension Benefits
The Company has a defined benefit pension plan. Emplovees who are in continuous service for a period of fifieen years are eligible for pension, The level of benefits
provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at the retirement date

Risks associated with Plan Provisions

Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial nisks These risks are: - (1) interest risk (discount rate risk), (ii) mortality risk and (iii) salary risk.

Investment risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period of
government bonds

Interest risk (discount rate risk):
A decrease in the bond rate (di rate) will i the plan Liability
Mortality risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by refe o the best est of the mortality of plan participants both during and after the employment.
Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) ultimate table has been used in respect of the above. A change in mortality rate will have a bearing on the plan's liability,
Salary risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability 1s calculated with the [ of salary rate of plan participants i future, Deviation in the rate of increase of
salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used 1o determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.
Demographic risk
This 15 the risk of variablity of results due to unsy 1 nature of d that mclude mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on
the defined benefit obligations 15 not straight forward and depends upon the combi of salary i discount rate and vesting criterion.
Withdrawals
Actual Withdrawals providing higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rate at subseq luations can impact plan's liability.
Principal rial ptions for all the unfunded defined benefits plans:

Asat As at

31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019

Discount rate (p.a.) 6.50% 7.40%
Expected rate of salary i (p.a.) - Manag, 7.00% 7.00%
Expected rate of salary i (p.a.) - Non-M: 5.00% 5.00%
Note:

|. The estimates of future salary i idered take mto the inflation, seniority, p ton and other rel factors.
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B - As at As at
31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019
Mortality table Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08) Mortality (2006-08)
Withdrawal rate (p.a.) (age 21 to 44 vears) 6.00% 2.50%
Withdrawal rate (p.a.) (above 45 years of Age) 2.00% 1.00%
A recognised in of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:
Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at
31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019
Service Cost
Current Service cost 2429 23.96
Past Service cost 243 0.53
Net interest expense 11.79 10.15
Component of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 38.51 34.64
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability :
Actuanial (Gains)/losses ansing from ch mn d h o -16.12 -
Actuarial (Gains)/losses ansing from changes i financial assumptions 22.53 725
Actuarial (Gamns)/losses anising from experience adjustment 15.05 16.13
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensi 21.46 23,38
Total 29.97 58.02
The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in "Employee benefits expense” in the St of Profit and Loss.
The remeasurement of the net defined liablity is included in other compret income
The amount included in the Balance Sheet ansing from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefits plans as follows:
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019
Present value of defined benefit obligation (201 47) (177.75)
Present value of defined benefit obligation (201.47) (177.75)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as foll
Rs, in Lakhs
As at As at
31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019
Opening defined benefit obligations 177.75 137 49
Service cost 26.72 2449
Interest cost 11.79 10,15
Acquisition credit/{ cost) 551 -5.29
Actuarial losses arising from changes in d h -16.12 -
Actuarial (gams)/losses ansing from changes in financial assumptions 22,53 7.25
Actuarial gains arising from experience adjustment 15.05 16.13
Benefits paid -41.76 -12.47

Closing defined benefit obligations 201.47 177.78
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Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the d of the defined benefit obligation are di rate, expected salary i and mortality, The sensitivity analyses below
have been determined based on bly possible ch of the ptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
Particulars As at 31-Mar-2020 As at 31-Mar-2019
Rs.in Lakhs Rs.in Lakhs
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (-/+0,5%) 14.42 (13.01) 13.19 (11.82)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) (7.16%) 6.46% (7.42%) 6.65%
Growth Rate (+/+0.5%) (12.59) 13.80 (9.10) 12.65
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 6.25% -6.85% 5.12% (7.11%)
Mortality Rate (-/+1 year) (0.72) 0.73 - 0.43
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.36% (0.36%) 0.00% (0.24%)
Withdrawl Rate (~/+35%) - (32.61) 043 (26.44)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.00% 16.19% (0.24%) 14.87%
The expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation vy respective end of financial year's (valued on undiscounted basis) are as follows:
(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019

Within | Year 785 553
Between | - 2 years 8.80 374
Between 2 - 3 years 1031 437
Between 3 - 4 years 10.56 522
Between 4 - 5 years 12.03 6.22
Beyond 5 Years 115.62 48.61

165.17 10739

31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019

The ag of the defined benefit plan obligati P ge d for active bers (based on 7.4 years 8.1 years

discounted cash flows)
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18. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Accounting Policy

Deferred tax 1s recognised on temporary differences between the carrymg amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, Defered tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the imitial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-nssessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the hability is settled or the asset realised, based on fax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or sete the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the sume taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items arc recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction cither in OC1 or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future

income tax linbility. A dingly, MAT is guised as deferred tax asset m the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset
will be realised
As at As at
31st March, 2020 3lst March, 2019
T Lakhs T Lakhs
Deferred Tax Assets 198 87 30123
Deferred Tax Liabilities (1,002 54) (1,448.85)
Total - Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (803.67) (1,147.62)
5 Recognised in Profit or | Utilised during the Recognised in other -
Year ended March 31, 2020 Opening Balance i N e Y iee Closing balance
Deferred tax assets in relation te
Allowance for Doubtful Debts, Deposits and Advances 226.69 (103 85) - 122,84
Provision for Employee Benefits and Others 7454 (3.91) 540 76.03
MAT Credit entitlement of carlier years* - 1232 {12.32) =]
301.23 (95.44) (12.32) 5.40 198.87
Deferred tax linbilities in relation to
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,448 85 (446.31) - 1,002.54
1,448.85) (446.31) N 1,002.54
Net Deferred Tax Liability 1,147.62 (350.87) 1232 (5.40) B03.67
*The company have booked & utilised MAT credit amounting Rs. 12.32Lakhs for year FY 2018-19 on the basis of retum filed
% Recognised in Profit or | Utilised during the|  Recognised in other 2
Year ended March 31, 2019 Opening Balance — yoar ot e Nt Closing balance
Deferred Tax Assets in relation to
Allowance for Doubtful Debts, Deposits and Advances 231.15 (4.46) - 226.69
Provision for Emplovee Benefits and Others 5547 10.90 817 T4.54
MAT Credit entitlement 24939 - (249.39) -]
536.01 6.44 (249.39) 8.17 301.23
Deferred Tax Liabilities in relation to
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,459.02 (10.17) = 1,448.85
1,459.02 (10.17) - - 1,448.85)
Net Deferred Tax Liability 923.01 (16.61) 249.39
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19. Other Current Liabilities

As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs < Lakhs
Current
Statutory Liabilities 103.33 134.72
Advance payments received from Customers 1,523.39 1,025.80
Other Liabilities 59.51 6.48
1,686.23 1,167.00
20. Current Borrowings
As at As at
31st March, 2020 J1st March, 2019
% Lakhs % Lakhs
Secured - At Amortised Cost
From Banks
Bank Overdraft (refer note 1 and 2 below) 0.74 14,266.01
0.74 14,.266.01

Security

21. Trade payables

1. Secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation of the Company's moveable including book-debts, bills, outstanding monies,
receivables, both present and future ranking pari-passu with other participating banks except project receivables.
2. The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank loans is 8.40% per annum (as at 31 March, 2019: 8.34% per annum)

As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
% Lakhs T Lakhs
Trade payables (see note below)
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & 41,433.56 34,506.24
small enterprises.
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises
41,433.56 34,506.24
Note:
i The average credit period is upto 30 days for the Company.
ii. Based on information available with the company, the balance due to micro, small enterprises as defined under the micro,
small & medium enterprises development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is Rs Nil (31st March 2019 : Rs Nil) and no interest has been
paid or is payable during the year under the terms of the MSMED Act 2006.
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Revenue from with i wed when cootrol of the goods or services are transferred 1o the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Comparty expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services and specific eriteria have been met for each of the Company's activities as described below,

i Sale of electricity
Revumﬂnmnllofpowulsmww&m:ﬁmmmmmmmumnfdemmuﬁhmmhnsnﬁ:umumngmadwumﬂuranhm
of icity dels nhm ruma\sﬂu simultancously receives and consumes the benefits of the Company’s performence obligation, it best depicts the value to the customer
and compl 1 of
In the arrangements the Company is acting as an agent, the revenue 1s recognized on net basis when the units of ity are deli 0 pawer p hecause this 1 when the Company transfers

cantral over its services and the customer benefits from the Company's such agency services.

The Company determines ifs revenue on certain contracts net of power purchase cost based on the following factors:
4 another party is primarily responsible for fulfilling the contract as the Company does not have the ability to direct the use of power supplied or obtain benefits from supply of power.

b. the Company does not have inventory risk before or after the power has been delivered 1o customers as the power is directly supplied 1© customer

¢ the Company has no discretion in establishing the price for supply of power. The Company's ' in these is only based on the differsnce between sales price charged 10 procurer and
purchase price given 1o supplier.

memMMMMMWWmeummmm

Cusomers are billed based on Ily aureed fr ‘which is monthly or at the end of supply in case supply is for a part of the month and are given credit penod on sale of power up t©

%0 days. Interest is charged at 1 3% 1o 18% per aunum on the outstanding balance bevond the credit period.

i Rendering of Services
Revonus in the nature of advisory services rendered towards finalisation of power p load oo, is ised as de ned under the terms of respactive agreements, For
sale of power under banking arrangements only margin eamed on the transactions is accounted for as revenue

i Delayed payment and compensation charges

Delayed payment charges for power supply on grounds of prudence are recogmised when recovery is virtually certain.
Compensition recoverable from customers/suppliers for default in purchase/sule of power 1s accrued as determined under the ferms of respective agreements mnd acknowledged by
w Dividend and Interest income
Dividend income from 1 15 recogmsed when the shareholder's right 1o receive payment has been established ided that it is probable that the i¢ benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured relisbly).
Interest income from a financial nsset is recognised when it is probable that the benefits will flow o the Campany and the amount of income can be measured relisbly. Interest meome is accrued

mlmbwmhnfumwwdnpmnpdwnndmgméuth:uﬁnmmmw&mﬁwhrmmmhmmm:mthmdmﬁm
financial asset to that asset’s net camying amount on initinl recognition

For Year ended For Year ended
| 3istMarch,2020 3ist March, 2019
¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
(a)  Revenue from power supply 17,929.05 19,118.46]
(b)  Revenue from power supply of agency nature (refer note 22.1) 6,074.73 6,509.75
i Total revenue from power supply 14,003,78 15,628.21
i Other Operating Revenue
(i) Inmemrupmnfmrmdeml 93.07] 114.55
{11} Compansanon income 8138 -
(i) Laabilities no longer required written back - 5771
(1v) Delayed payinent charges recovered 20.63 2981
{v) Provision for doubtful debts and advances written back 160.71 1277
{¥) Other income 507.27 37311
{vi) Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant ind Equipment (Net) 0.65 no3
790.71 S—IT”f
|
Total Revenue from 2479449 26,216.19]
22.1 Revenue from Power Supply of agency nature
For Year ended For Year ended
313t March, 2020 3lst March, 2019
2 Lakhs 2 Lakhs
Revenue from Power Supply of agency nature {gross) 421,375.69 4.03,616.59
{Less). Cost of power purchase of agency nature {gross) {4,15,300.96 (3,97.107.24))
6,074.73 | 6,509.75




23, The i i bligation disch pmnd,esdummmmrarlhemmmpmey:lmhcrwupu,edanlt:mdofmuspm:mpenadmdmexplummsmwitmlhe(‘mpw
wemmtemuﬂmemmsmrmm Applymng the practical expedient as given m Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the P bligation related disclosures for coniracts as the
revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date

24, Disaggregation of Revenue
The Company has a single stream of revenue | e. sale of power. Revenve from Contraets with Customers reconciliation has been given as under.

For Year ended For Year ended
st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
2429646 20|B4!I
498 03 9271
WMI 26216.19)
5. Other me
For Year ended For Year ended
31t March, 2020 MstMarch,2019 |
¥ Lakhs T Lakhs
{m)  Gain on Investments
Gain on Current Invastment measared ot FVTPL-Mutual Funds 110.36 218.20
110,36 118.20
(b}  Other Non-operating Income
Interest Income from foesd deposts - 108
Orther seres 3 759 990
Liabulities 1o lonsrer ragured wrines back 275.30 =]
283.29 12.98
Total Other Income 393.65 23L.15|
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16. Employee Benefits Expense

a. Defined contribution plns
P to defined benefit plans are ised as an when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

b. Defined benefits plans

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the proj unit credit method. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial
gans and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the retum on plan assets
(excludi included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive mcome (OC() in the period in which they occur. R are not recl d to of
profit and loss in subsequent periods. Past service costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:

- the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

~the date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest 15 calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- SErvice COsls COmPrising current service costs, past-service costs, gans and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

- net interest expense or income.

A liability for a mation benefit is

recognises any related restructuring costs.
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the

d at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity

deter of the di rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the lexities lved in the valuation and its long-t nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to ch in these 1ons. All 1ons are reviewed at each reporting date.
The parameter most subject to change is the di rate, In d ining the approp di rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the

interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.
Shori-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expectad to be paud 1n exchange for that service

Liabilities recognised in respect of current emplovee benefits are d at the undi d amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related service.
Liabilities recognised in respect of other non-current employ are at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up 1o the reporting date
For Year caded] For Year ended)
31ist March, 2020 31st March, 2019
¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs]
Salanes and Wages T38.00 960, 56
Contribution to Provident Fund 3533 38.69
Gratuity Expense 28.59 1.59
Stafl Welfare Expenses 93.34 99.49
915.26 l;lllll..‘ij
27, Finance Costs
Accounting Policy
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acg tion or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period

of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, nrc&dd,admthcmxl nfﬂm&eas&ets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

or Ycar or Year
31st March, 2920' 31st March, 2019
¥ Lakhs T Lakhs|
(a) Imterest Expense:
Borrowings
Interest on Borrowings from Related Parties 19.05 66.77
Interest on Loans - Banks & Financial [nstitutions 630.70 625.17
Others
Interest on Bank Overdraft 69.57 122 46
719.32 814.40
Bank charges 120.00 73.15
120.00 73.15
839.32
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28. Other Expenses
For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 |
2 Lakhs| T Lakhs
Rental of Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment, etc. 137.76 135.00
Insurance 2239 2253
Other Operation Expenses 126.19 140.43
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 54.52 59.72
Consultants' Fees 99.38 161.15
Auditors' Remuneration 2322 21.52
Cost of Services Procured 428.58 32029
Brand Equity Expenses 70.00 341.00
Amortisation of Advance Towards Leasehold Land - 0.40
Legal Charges 49,95 52.20
Corp Social R ibility Exy 60.00 4299
Bad debts 110.92 1431
Rates and taxes 10828 0.36
Miscellaneous Expenses 177.53 166 85
Total 1,468.72 1,478.75
Note:
Payment to Statutory Auditors comprise (inclusive of GST)
- For Statutory audit & limited review 13.55 13.55
- For Tax audit 2.12 212
= For Other services 4.60 425
- For Reimbursement of expenses 295 1.60
Total 23.22 11.52

29, Income taxes

Accounting Policy

Current income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the respective subsidiary companies

operates and generates taxable income.

Current income fax relatmg to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit and loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation 1o the underiying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
; Gl e

periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to si in which appli tax regulations are subject to inter
provisions where appropriate
For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs 2 Lakhs
Current tax
In respect of the current year 1284.00 2044.66
In respect of the previous years 15.56 10.22
1,299.56 2,054.88
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (350.87) (16.61)
Total Deferred tax expense (350.87) (16.61)
Total income tax expense 948.69 2.038,27]
29 .1 The income tax expense for the year can be r iled to the iting profit as foll
For Year ended] For Year ended
315t March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs T Lakhs
Profit before tax 5,019.93 5,728.03
Income tax expense calculated at 25.17% (2018-19: 34,944%,) 1,263.52 2,001.60
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 29 1828
Effect related to adjustment for previous years 3.24 10.22
Effect of items not reclassified to profit & loss account 540 8.17
R of deferred tax on account of new tax regime (326,39} 3
948.69 2,038.27
The tax rate used for the years 2019-2020 and 2018-19 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits
under the Indian income tax law.
29.2 1 tax recognised in other comprehensive i
Deferred tax For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs T Lakhs
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation 5.40 8.17
Total income tax recongnised in other comprehensive income 5.40, 8.17
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into:
- Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 540
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30. Earnings per share
ing Poli

i) Basic earnings per share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing:

- The profit attributable to owners of the group

= By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus clement in equity shares

issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the d mation of basic ings per share to take mto account:
- The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
- The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive

potential equity shares,
For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Basic and Diluted earnings per shiare 2545 23.06

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets & financial liablity measured at fa
The eamings and weighted average number of equity shares used i the calculation of basic/diluted eamings per share are as follows;

For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
T Lakhs 2 Lakhs
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the company 4,071.24 3,689.76
Earnings used in the calculation of basic/ diluted eamings per share (Rs. in Lacs) 4.071.24 3,689.76
For Year ended For Year ended
J1st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
‘Weighted av be ity shares fi i
cighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic/ diluted camings 1.60,00.000 1.60,00,000
per share.
Note: There are no potential equity shares which are anti-dilutive.
31. Segment information
The Company 15 maunly engaged in the busi of trading of electricity in India. Based on the infc T d to the chief op g d
maker (CODM) for the purpose of llocation and of perf there are no reportable seg i ! with the
qui of Indian A ing Standard 108-'Operating Segment Reportng, nonfied under the Companies (Indian A ing Standards)
Rules, 2015.
32. Related party disclosures
(a) Name of related parties and description of relationship:
Controlling entity (CE):

The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) (Holding Company)

Fellow idiaries (where tr ions have taken place during the period):

(i) Tata Power Delhi Distribution Limited (TPDDL)
(i) Maithon Power Limited (MPL)
(i) Tata Power Solar Systems Limited (TPSS)
(iv) Tata Power Renewal Energy Limited (TPREL)
(v) Costal Gujrat Power Limated (CGPL)
(vi) Welspun Renewable Energy Limited (WREL)
{wii) Welspun Solar Kannada Private Limited (WSKPL)
(viif)  Vagarai Windfarms Limited (VWFL)
(ix) Powerlinks Transmission Limited (PTL)
(x) Clean Sustainable Solar Energy Private Limited (CSSEL)
(xi) Chirasthayee Sauraya Limited (CSL)

Associates of Controlling entity (where transactions have taken place during the year):
1) Dragachhu Hydro Power Corporation Ltd (DHPC)
(it) Tata Communications Ltd (TCL)

P ther with its subsidiary holding more than 20% in Controlling entity:
[} Tata Sons Private Limited

Subsidiaries and Jointly control entities of promoter:
i) Tata Consultancy Limited
(i1) Tata AlG General Insurance Company Limited
(1) Tata Teleservices Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
(] Sanjeev Mehra, Managing Director (till 30th November 2019)
(i) Bhaskar Sarkar, Chief Executive Officer (wef from |st December 2019)
(i) Suranjit Mishra, Chief Financial Officer (ull 31st July 2019)
{iv) Lalit Narang, Chief Financial Officer (wef from st August 2019 to 24th January 2020)
(v) Ritu Gupta, Chuef Financial Officer (wef from 25th January 2020)
(vi) Neha Malik, Company Secretary
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b} Transsctivn | balances with related parties ¥ Lakhs
Farticulars L% Filles wibalinrin Awociates of CE KMP Total
TFCL TPDDL MPL TPSS TPREL CGrL PFTL VWFL WREL WSKPL 5L Sub-total DHPC TCL
(1) Details of transactions during the
year ended 3151 March, 2020
Revemse from power supply and rendering services® - 124.421.18 - 49126 1222 nwM 07 (L ER 1) 1,24 966 K3 - 184 - 1,24,968.67
- 11093382 - 34136 87 212 e 1.11.345.33 - - 11134553
Cash dsscount allowed - 1871.26 - - - 1L871.26 - - - 1LE71 26
- 1683 - - . 168394 1683.94
Revenue from sale of REC cen and other services 4 . s - - . - = - - = 408
yL1e i . . 8 5 - - - 9118
. .
Cost of power purchased 2259044 - 180,113 95 - . = - 13011395 15,800 63 - - LIR.505 02
2T N32 1.331.87 1333318 - - - - 1,33.165.05 1234173 - 1.94.525 10
Cash discosmi enmexd 41891 - 325478 - - - - 325478 281,98 - - 3u5547
| The financial statements have been prepared on & historical cosd 46931 Jo.6d 357554 - - - 3.6t 18 246,83 - = 432232
(see note 2 belaw) = - - - - = = ~ . - . 0731 30731
- . . - - 5 ~ . 2647 236,67
Receiving of services 426.53 = - = - 3642 = ¥ - 46293
ELTR ) - = - - - - - a4 - - 426,03
Rembursement of expenscs-Paid .54 1339 - - 359 - - - 242 83
1684 520 1213 - - - 129.33 - - - 607
‘of expenses- - slloz - - = 264 o8 = 817.15 1.443.47 - - 2,260.62
47 63 134895 128 - - = 139287 1.285.9% - - 3,646,495
-
Purchase of Fived Asscts - 442 - - - 482 - . - 482
Inderest camed on Inter corporute doposit gives 033 - - - - - - - - 033
.90 - - - - - 290
Interest paid on lnter carporate deposit laken 167 - - . T3 - . T8 - - - 1905
1363 2808 15.08 797 514 66,77
Inter corporale deponti jgiven 700,00 - - - . - - - 704100
000 o0 - - - - - - @006, ()
Imter corporate deposi received back 700,06 - - - - . - - . . 0000
9, 000,00 - - - - - - 9,000 (40
Inter corporme depam taken 1500000 - - - 15,000,00 - - - (EXUT - - - 30,000.00
i AN (e - 14, i oy . 3. 000,00 5, S 00 - 24, Sibin itk - 34, 500 00
Inier conparte deposil repakd [EXUTHEV] - - 15,000,00 s - - 15,000 00 - - - 30,040 00
0t 061 - - 14, 0y iy - 5,000, 00 530000 24, 500000 - - - 34, 300.00
Dividend paid . - - - - . . . - - - . - . -
L0000 = - = = = = - - = - S
*Hepresent gross agency revenue | cost
Notes:

1. Fiures in italics stated for vear ended 3 1ot March, 2019
2 M 1 for KMP provision for &

ool graturty, ad seporate figures for KMP s not available
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¥ Lakhs

CE Fellow subsidiaries Associates of CE Total
TFCL IFRDL MPL TPSS TPREL LGPl YWFL WREL WSKPL Sub-totul DHFPC TCL

(i) Balance outstanding
Trade receivables
As ot 31.03,2020 - 1.367.70 - - - - 6329 240 LAY Lo 1.577.54 - - 757754
LAs at 31.03.2019 - 21,429.51 328,92 L4 a2 128 Aoy or o - 2177118 1210 Lig 24,784 .54
Security Deposit payable
As a 3103 2020 - - 125 1.53 0,30 308 - 308
[As ar 30032019 - - L35 1.53 27 305 - - 305
| Trade pavables
[ The financial statements have been prepared on a histonical cost by 197191 - 13,194 96 27 86 13,222 82 591,91 1578664
| As at 31.03.2019 262591 - 12.384.01 47.08 - 12.631.06 - - 15.256.97

Notes:
1. Figures in italics stated are balances as on 3 15t March . 2019
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(In Lakhs)
Subsidiaries and Jointly control entities of promoter P
Tata AIG General Insurance
Particulars Tata Coansultancy Ltd Comp Ltd Tata Teleservices Lid Tata Sons Itd
Receivable March 31, 2020 - - 1437 "_1
March 31, 2019 - - - 30.40
Payable March 31, 2020 1.67 339 - T0.00
March 31, 2019 1.67 - - -
Transactions during the vear
(In Lakhs)
Tata AIG General Insurance
Particulars Tata Consultancy Ltd Company Ltd Tata Teleservices Ltd Tata Sons Itd
Revenue from sale of power and rendering services
For the period March 31, 2020 - - 368.15 -
For the period March 31, 2019 2 = : =
Receving of services
For the period March 31, 2020 - 23.55 - -
The financial March 31, 2019 - 22.76 0.02 -
Reimbursement of expense recovered
For the penod March 31, 2020 - Q.40 =
For the period March 31, 2019 - - 0.77 -
Brand Equity
For the penod March 31, 2020 - - - 70.00
| For the period March 31, 2019 - - - 341.00

Notes

1. Figures in italics stated for year ended 31st March, 2019
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33. Categories of financial instrument

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that contain
financial instruments.

33.1 Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amount and fair value of the financial instruments:

Carrying value Fair Value
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2020 2019 2020 2019
T Lakhs T Lakhs T Lakhs T Lakhs
Financial assets :
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2016.73 824 2,016.73 8.24
Trade Receivables 54,528.16 56,608.78 54,528.16 56,608.78
Unbilled Revenues and agency receivable 8.481.80 11,580.96 8,481.80 11,580,96
+ial sta Other Non current & current financial assets 1,327.5% 1.193.64 1,327.59 1,193.64
Total 66,354 28 69.391.62 66,354.28 69.391.62
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 41,433.56 34 50624 41,433.56 34,506.24
Floating rate borrowings* 2,882.20 3,167.46 2,882.20 3,167 46
Other financial habilities 63667 594 63 636.67 594 63
44952 43 38,268.33 44 952 43 3826833

* Includes current maturities of non-current borrowings and interest accrued but not due on borrowing

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other balances with bank, trade receivables, unbilled revenues, trade payables, other financial assets and
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

Considering the sustained losses in the companies in which the investment is held, fair value of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a
Adjusted Net Asset Value Method. The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including realizable value of
assets. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management’s estimate of fair value for those
unquoted mvestments

The cost of certain unquoted investments approximate their fair value because there is a wide range of possible fair value measurements and the cost
represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity
analysis as at 31st March 2020 and 31st March 2019 are as shown below:

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Valuation technigues Significant Range (weighted average) Sensitivity of the input
unobservable inputs to fair value
FVTPL assets in unquoted equity shares of Net  Asset  Value None N.A E
Power Exchange India Limited Method

33.2 Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the

following three levels:

Level |  Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This includes mutual funds that have quoted price.

Level 2 Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly (1.e. as prices) or indirectly (ie.
derived from prices). This includes and investment in redeemable non-cumulative preference shares and equity shares.

Level 3 Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on
assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market
data. This includes unquoted equity shares. 7
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The following table summarizes financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required) :

Fair value hierarchy as at 315t March, 2020

Quoted prices in active  Significant  Significant unobservable

markets observable inputs inputs Total

Dste of valustica (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Asset measured at fair value
FVTPL financial investments
Investment in equity shares of Power
Exchange India Limited 31st March, 2020 - - - -
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed
Floating rate borrowings - 2.861.50 " 2.861.50
Taotal - 2.861.50 - 2,861.50

Fair value hierarchy as at 31st March, 2019

Quoted prices in active Significant  Significant unobservable
markets observable inputs inputs
Date of valuation (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)

Total

Asset measured at fair value

FVTPL financial investments

Investment in equity shares of Power

Exchange India Limited 31st March, 2019 = - 2 i
Investment in preference shares of Tata

Ceramics Limited 21st March, 2018 - E g =

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed
Floating rate borrowings - 3,143.56 - 3.143.56

Total - 3,143.56 - 3.143.56

Capital Management & Gearing Ratio
For the purpose of the Company's capital management. capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximize the sharcholder value

The Compnay manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. From
time to time, the Company reviews its policy related to dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or fresh issue of shares. The Company monitors
capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company's policy is to keep the gearing ratio up to 60%. The Company includes
within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents

The Company's capital management is intended to create value for sharcholders by facilitating the meeting of its long-term and short-term goals. Its Capital structure
consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes below) and total equity.

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

% Lakhs
Debt (1) 2,862.24 17,409.57
Less: Cash and Bank balances 2.016.73 824
Net debt 84551 17,401.33
Total Capital (i1) 23251.04 19,195.86
Capital and net debt 24,096.55 36,597.19
Net debt to Total Capital plus net debt ratio (%) 351 47.55

(i) Debt is defined as long-term borrowings (including current maturities) and short-term borrowings.
(i) Equity 1s defined as Equity share capital and other equity including reserves and surplus.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately
call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.
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The Company has been monitoring Net debt to Total Capital plus net debt ratio during the year as against Net debt to equity ratio monitored in the previous year
However, there is no change in the overall objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 3 1st March 2020 and 3 1st March 2019

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings. trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances, unbilled receivables and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTPL investments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s
senior management is supported by a risk committee that reviews the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The
Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance
with the Companys policies and risk objectives. It is the Company's policy that no trading i derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of two
types of risk: interest rate risk , price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt as at 31st March, 2020. The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market
variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates

Interest rate sensitivity:

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on exposure to interest rates for term loans at the end of the reporting period and the stipulated change
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period in case of term loans that have floating rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all the other variables were held constant, the effect on Interest expense for the respective financial

years and juent effect on Company's profit in that financial year would have been as below
T Lakhs

As of 31st March, 2020 As of 31st March, 2019

50 bps mcrease 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease
Interest expense on loan 14.31 (14.31) 15.72 (15.72)
Effect on profit before tax (14.31) 14.31 (15.72) 15.72
Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its oblig under a fi ial mstrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). Credit exposure is controlled by counter party limits for major counter parties that are
reviewed and approved by the Management regularly Ongoing credit eval 15 performed based on the financial condition of receivables and the collaterals are

held as security in some of the cases. The Company generally deals with parties which has good credit rating/ worthiness given by external rating agencies or based on
Company's internal assessment as listed below:

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Trade receivables 54528.16 56.608.78
Other Current & Non Current

financial assets 1,327.59 1,193 .64
Total 55,855.75 57,802.42

Refer Note 7 for credit risk and other information in respect of trade receivables. Other receivables as stated above are due from the parties under
normal course of the business and as such the Company believes exposure to credit risk to be minimal.




Tata Power Trading Company Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements g
Liquidity risk management
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves. banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding. Having
regards to the nature of the business wherein the Company is able to generate fixed cash flows over a period of time and to optimize the cost of funding.

T Lakhs
Up to 1to§ 5+ Total Carrying Amount|
1 year years years
31st March, 2020
Non-Derivatives
Borrowings* 3il62 1,873 68 67764 2,882.94 2,882.94
Interest on above borrowings 229.74 704.87 58.68 99329 -
Trade Payables 4] 433 56 - - 41,433.56 4143356
Other Financial Liabilities 636.67 - - 636,67 636.67
Total Non-Derivative Liabilities 42,631.59 2,578.55 736.32 45,946.46 44,953.17
31st March, 2019
Non-Derivatives
Borrowings* 14,571.97 1,392 19 1,469 30 17,433 46 17,433 46
Interest on above borrowings 269.09 787 89 24414 1,301.12 -
Trade Payables 3450624 - - 34,506.24 34,506.24
Other Financial Liabilities 59463 - - 59463 594 63
Total Non-Derivative Liabilities 49.941.93 2,180.08 1.713.44 53,835.45 52,534.33

* Includes current maturities of long term debts and interest accrued but not due on borrowing

The Company has access to financing facilities as described in note below. The Company expects to meet its obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of
maturing financial assets.

Financing facilities

T Lakhs
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Secured Long term facility with various maturity dates through to 16th April, 2028
Amount used 2,861.50 3.143.56

Amount unused -

Secured bank overdraft and other loan facilities
Amount used 0.74 14,266.01
Amount unused 22,639.00 1341799
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Contingent Liabilities
The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

Capital Commitments
As on reporting date open capex purchase order is as follow -

T Lakhs
Order placed for J1st March, 2020| 31st March, 2019
Printer 1.89 -
Laptop 1.76 -

. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Impact of Covid-19 on Business

India and other global markets experienced significant disruption in operations resulting from uncertainty caused by the worldwide coronavirus
pandemic. Considering that the entity is in the business of essential services, management believes that there is not much of an impact likely due to
this pandemic. However, the Company is closely monitoring developments, its operations. liquidity and capital resources and is actively working to
minimize the impact of this unprecedented situation.

. Corporate Social Responsibility

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended 3 Ist March, 2020: Rs. 59 Lakhs (Previous year Rs, 42.87 Lakhs)
Amount spent during the year ended 31st March, 2020 2 60 Lakhs (Previous year T 42.99 Lakhs).

{ Lakhs
Paid Yet to be paid Total
i) Construction/acquisition of any assets = = %
) (=) )
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 60.00 - 60.00
(41.05) -1.94 (42.99)
iii) Details of related party transaction
- Contribution during the year ended 31st March, 2020 - - -
Q)] ) )

- Payable as at 31st March, 2020 - = -

* Figure in brackets pertain to the previous year
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39.  Approval of financial Statements ; 29, 2020
The Financial Statements for the year eided March 31, 2020 were approved for issue by Hoard of Dircctors on April 29, 2020.

The accompanying notes ure un integeal part of the finnncinl statements
For and on behal! of the Board of Directors of

As per our report ofeven date
For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLI Tuta Power Trading Company Limited

Chartersd Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301003E / E300005

Ajay Kapoor Kiran Gupta
Director Director
Membership Nof/95377 DIN-00466631 DIN-08196580
Bhaskar Sarkar Ritu Gupta
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
I tb/Mik
Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: 29th Apnl, 2020 Date: 29th April, 2020
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